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Chairman’s Statement and
EN X e R VY

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to present the audited annual results of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014 together
with comparative figures. These annual results have
been reviewed by the Company’s audit committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$156,940,000,
representing a decrease of HK$66,816,000 or 29.9%
from HK$223,756,000 for the year 2013.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to
HK$2,541,000 (2013: profit of HK$4,695,000). The
loss was mainly attributable to a change from gain
of HK$5,758,000 to a loss of HK$2,877,000 on
fair value changes of investments held for trading;
and loss of HK$1,439,000 on fair value changes
of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Despite there was a significant
decrease in loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties but there was no one off gain
arising from the discontinued operations, therefore
the Group still recorded a loss this year as compared
to the year 2013.

The basic loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March
2014 was HK$0.012 (2013: basic earnings per share
of HK$0.194).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in the business of garment sourcing and export
businesses, property investments, investment in
securities and loan financing.

Geographical Analysis of Turnover

During the year, the turnover from garment sourcing
and export businesses was mainly derived from
customers in the US. Rental income from the
investment properties were derived from properties
located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”).

(i)

(ii)

Garment Sourcing and Export Businesses

For the year ended 31 March 2014, this segment
recorded a turnover of HK$142,138,000 (2013:
HK$211,770,000) representing 32.9% decrease
comparing with year 2013. Cost of sales for
the year amounted to HK$126,790,000 (2013:
HK$190,157,000). The loss of HK$4,908,000
(2013: loss of HK$1,601,000) was mainly due to
the decrease of turnover despite the Company’s
efforts to improve the profit margin.

Property Investments

Turnover from the property investments
segment increased by 18.2% to HK$13,927,000
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
HK$11,780,000) of which HK$8,307,000
and HK$5,620,000 were generated from
the properties in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively. The increase in turnover is primarily
attributed to the addition of the investment
properties, the effect of tenancy renewal, periodic
rental adjustments under the clauses of the
existing tenancy agreements and new tenants.
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EEERWED T
XBEE

RER REEEBLEFRERLOK
g%m% HMERE  EFRERETRE

EXEREM DT

RER KEREOKKER 2 LERE
TBREXELEF - RENEMBLZ
HEWARBLNEELPEARKM
(TFRET]) 2! -

(i) RBREHAKRKRES

B Z2014F3A31B It F ¥ K
o Ef 8% 15 & ¥ %8142,138,0007% T
(20134 : 211,770,000 7T) '@ #&
20134 5 32.9% ° M F N 2
€ K K 5126,790,0007% 7T (2013
% :190,157,0008 L) - BE AR
AISNMERENE  BERARS
/&5 184,908,000/ 7T (20134 : BB
1,601,000870) ' TERHAREET

(i) =RE

EE2014F3A31BILFE » MERE
Db & I N118.2% % 13,927,000
BT (20135 : 11,780000/87T) * HAP &
B NS BIE 48,307,000
7 7T 125,620,000/ 7T © & ZEIE AN
TERRNEEREYE B BiE
BEHERRETMIENRBHES
AEARFHEOTERME -

XREBXEBHRAR 2013/14 F8® 5



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Rl BB il K o b

The Group has three blocks of factory premises
and four blocks of dormitories with a total gross
floor area of approximately 63,891 sq.m. in
Huzhou, PRC; further construction works are on
hand.

(iii) Investment in Securities

The Group has maintained a portfolio of listed
equity securities in Hong Kong with available-
for-sale investments and investments held for
trading. For the year ended 31 March 2014, this
segment has recorded a loss of HK$1,738,000
(2013: profit of HK$7,472,000).

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2014, total assets of the
Group amounted to HK$1,389,502,000 (2013:
HK$1,003,979,000). In terms of financial resources
as at 31 March 2014, the Group’s total bank
balances and cash was HK$589,458,000 (2013:
HK$277,411,000), of which, approximately RMB61
million (equivalent to approximately HK$75 million)
was tied up in the PRC as investment capital.

Our capital base has been strengthened as a
result of a total net proceeds of approximately
HK$386,700,000 raised through the completion
of issuing rights shares of approximately
HK$122,000,000 and approximately HK$146,000,000
on 19 June 2013 and 13 December 2013
respectively; by the completion of placing new shares
of approximately HK$20,000,000 on 24 September
2013; and by the completion of issuing convertible
note of approximately HK$98,700,000 on 27 March
2014.
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As at 31 March 2014,

Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

the Group has total

bank borrowings of HK$161,902,000 (2013:
HK$168,687,000). The Group’s gearing ratio, which
is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
shareholders’ equity was approximately 0.14 (2013:
0.21). As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s current ratio
was 19.7 (2013: 11.9).

The Group financed its operation primarily with
recurring cash flow generated from its operation,
proceeds raised from the capital market and bank
financing.

Fund Raising

(i)

(i)

On 11 September 2013, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with a placing agent
pursuant to which, the Company has agreed
to allot and issue, and the placing agent has
agreed to place 329,540,000 placing shares
to independent investors at a placing price of
HK$0.063 per share.

The placing was completed on 24 September
2013 and the entire 329,540,000 placing shares
have been successfully placed. The aggregate
net proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$20,000,000 and intended to be utilised as
the general working capital, as at the date of
this announcement, the same has been fully
deployed as general working capital.

On 27 March 2014, the Company completed
the issue of a convertible note (the “Convertible
Note”) in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 to Goodco Development
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$98,700,000 raised from the issue of the
Conversion Note is intended to be applied for the
acquisition and redevelopment of the buildings
located at No. 11, 13 and 15 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

2R oy B PR i M o3
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Rl BB il K o b

As at 31 March 2014, the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company was 296,595,900
shares (2013: 411,941,500 shares).

Details of Convertible Note

On 3 April 2014, the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Note have been partially exercised
for HK$20,000,000 and a total of 29,411,764
conversion shares were issued upon conversion.
Upon the completion of the placing of 65,200,000
placing shares on 18 June 2014, the conversion
price of the Convertible Note has been adjusted from
HK$0.68 per share to HK$0.66 per share. Particulars
of the Convertible Note are summarized as follows:

Holder of the Convertible Note
ARBREERFFA

Outstanding principal amount as at the date of
this report

RAFHRAPZ REER TR

Issue date
B1THH

Maturity date
FIEIH

Conversion price as at the date of
this report
RAFREH 2 ZRE

Goodco Development Limited was interested in
89,853,334 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 22.97% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report.
121,212,121 shares shall be issued by the Company
to Goodco Development Limited upon conversion
of the Convertible Note in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 in full at the prevailing
conversion price of HK$0.66 per share.

R2014%3A31H AR EIERITE R
W& IR 10 42 81 5296,595,9004% (2013
411,941,500 ) °

ARRREHE

R2014F4A3H » R EBREZ R
MEDEEH1TE - £ % 520,000,000
BT B 129,411,764/ X B IR D I K,
ik D ERIT - 201467180 &K
it £65,200,0000% B2 & A% 15 1% » A #2 A%
EBEZABMEERAERRMD0.68% TE
AR EFRRMN0.66/8TT - AR EZHE
BB

Goodco Development Limited
ExERARAF

HK$80,000,000
80,000,000 7T

27 March 2014
20143 H27H

27 March 2019
20193AH27H

HK$0.66 (subject to adjustment)
0.6678 7T (A 755 %)

EZEEAFR D AN 89,853,334
B EEER  BERARARAK
FHRE MO BITRAL22.97% - EXE
#8%880,000,0008 T2 AT R E R ER
LG ARABERRETHBRESR
M 150.66/8 L3 17121,212,121 % i 15 F
ERERERAQT
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had bank
loans amounting to HK$161,902,000 (2013:
HK$168,687,000) which were secured by the
investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate net book value of HK$372,000,000 (2013:
HK$372,000,000).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries or associated companies for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are
in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
During the year, the Group did not have significant
exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates and
thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The directors considered the risk of
exposure to the currency fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2014 (2013: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

During the year under review, the Group spent
approximately HK$551,000 (2013: HK$8,915,000)
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
and spent approximately HK$28,410,000 (2013:
HK$279,422,000) on addition of investment
properties.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided of HK$14,311,000
(2013: HK$5,016,000).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Rl BB il K o b

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

During the year under review, there was a decrease
of 97.9% in the loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties to HK$660,000 (2013: loss of
HK$30,790,000).

Finance Costs

Finance costs was HK$4,577,000, increased by
HK$487,000 or 11.9% for the year from HK$4,090,000
in 2013.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 38 employees
(2013: 39). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$15,107,000 for the
year under review (2013: HK$13,705,000). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government for the PRC employees. The Group
has a share option scheme to motivate valued
employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i) On 30 April 2014, the Company entered into
a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to acquire a
property situated at the Ground Floor, No.
15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$236,800,000.
The completion of the sale and purchase is
scheduled to be taken place on or before 29
August 2014; and the shareholders’ approval has
been obtained in the special general meeting of
the Company held on 18 June 2014.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

(i) On 6 June 2014, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant
to which, the Company has agreed to allot and
issue, and the placing agent has agreed to
place 65,200,000 placing shares to independent
investors at a placing price of HK$0.35 per
share.

The placing was completed on 18 June 2014 and
the entire 65,200,000 placing shares have been
successfully placed. The aggregate net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$22,500,000 and
intended to be used as the general working
capital.

(iii) Upon the completion of the placing of 65,200,000
placing shares on 18 June 2014, the conversion
price of the Convertible Note has been adjusted
from HK$0.68 per share to HK$0.66 per share.
Accordingly, 121,212,121 shares shall be issued
by the Company to Goodco Development Limited
upon conversion of the Convertible Note in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in
full at the prevailing conversion price of HK$0.66
per share.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to year 2014/15, despite of a number
of uncertainties are still affecting the global financial
market, such as adjustments to the macroeconomic
policies of major economies and geopolitical
tensions, the low interest environment is likely to
continue, which favours the economic recovery.
The global economy is on the track of more solid
economic recovery proven by the major indicators.
The unemployment rate of the US economy is
improved. European countries are also showing signs
of upturn. It is expected that China will continue with
its medium to high speed of economic growth with
the support of full-scale commencement of internal
reforms and the determination of macroeconomic
policies.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Increasing sourcing and labour costs, transfer of
customer orders and other operating pressure are
still affecting the garment industry. The Group is
dedicated to maintain good and close relationship
with valuable customers, strengthen its current sales
and marketing strategies to meet the prevailing trend
of the garment industry, and explore new markets
and increase profit margins.

The residential property market continues to be
quiet since the introduction of the various control
policies by the local government. Nevertheless, the
Group remains confident and optimistic towards the
residential property market with the environment
of low mortgage rates, tight supply in the urban
and luxurious areas, as well as strong domestic
household demand.

There are many difficulties in the operating
environment, but they breed development
opportunities as well. The business growth of the
Group is expected to accelerate and accordingly, the
positive outcomes will be gradually reflected in the
future with the recovery of the worldwide economy.
The Board is optimistic towards its core businesses
and will seize the business opportunities to achieve
long-term sustainable growth for the benefit of the
Group and its shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 June 2014
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Biographical Details of Directors

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 71, is an executive director,
chairman, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, president, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”). Mr.
Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-
Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of
experience in the legal field. He serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit
International. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board
as an independent non-executive director in 2003,
and was subsequently re-designated as an executive
director in 2007. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was appointed
as chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 56, is an executive director and
deputy chairman of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee. She is also an executive
director and vice president, and a member of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International. Ms.
Lui has been involved in the textiles industry for over
30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel.
She serves as director of various subsidiaries of
the Company and Easyknit International. Ms. Lui
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
in 2003 and was appointed as deputy chairman in
2006. She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, an executive director of the Company. Ms. Lui
is also the paternal sister-in-law of Mr. Lai Law Kau,
a non-executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors
HHZERE

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 29, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and
is a member of the Executive Committee since
2010. She is also an executive director, authorised
representative and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit International. Ms. Koon
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Politics from the University of Durham, England
in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of Laws
degree and Legal Practice Course qualification in
2009 from the College of Law, England. Ms. Koon is
the daughter of Ms. Lui, the deputy chairman of the
Company. She is also the niece of Mr. Lai Law Kau,
the non-executive director of the Company.

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 56, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit International. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam
Smith University of America in the United States in
1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice chairman in 2005, and was subsequently
re-designated from vice chairman to chairman and
appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In 2007,
Mr. Tse was re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director of the Company and
resigned as chairman and chief executive officer.
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MR. LAl LAW KAU

Mr. Lai, aged 53, is a non-executive director of
the Company since December 2013. He has been
involved in the textiles industry over 20 years and
has extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. He is also a
non-executive director of Easyknit International. Mr.
Lai is a paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the deputy
chairman of the Company, and he is also an uncle of
Ms. Koon, an executive director of the Company.

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 62, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2003. He is also
a member and chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science from The University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience
in accounting and finance. Mr. Kan is also an
independent non-executive director of Victory City
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0539).

Biographical Details of Directors
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Biographical Details of Directors
HHZERE

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and auditing and is
now practicing in his own name as certified public
accountant.

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 80, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2007. He is also a
member and chairman of the Nomination Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently a Partner of Messrs. Liu,
Choi & Chan, a firm of solicitors and notaries in
Hong Kong and has been practising in the legal field
for more than 30 years. He obtained his LLB from the
University of London in the United Kingdom in 1968
and a diploma in Chinese Laws from the University
of East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo was admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1972 and in
Hong Kong in 1973 and admitted as a barrister and
solicitor in the State of Victoria, Australia in 1982. He
is a Notary Public and a China Appointed Attesting
Officer.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The Board strives to ensure that effective
self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests
of the shareholders of the Company and to enhance
long-term shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 March 2014, with the exception of the
following deviation.

Code Provision A.2.1

Chairman and chief executive should not be
performed by the same individual

The Company does not have separate appointments
for chairman and chief executive officer. Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim holds both positions. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person enables
the Group to have a stable and consistent leadership.
It also facilitates the planning and execution of the
Company’s strategy and is hence, for the interests of
the Company and its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report
AR

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors, with 3
executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors and
3 independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”).
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills
and experience necessary for decision making and
fulfilling its business needs. The participation of non-
executive Directors in the Board bring independent
judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests
of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence required by the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board during the year and up
to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim —

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Deputy Chairman
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau (appointed on 1 December 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching
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The biographical details of all Directors are set
out in pages 13 to 16 of this annual report. Among
members of the Board, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is
the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Mr. Lai Law Kau
is the paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and the uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Save
as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationships among the
members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the
Group to executive Directors and senior management
of every business segment, while reserving certain
key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board
meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report
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Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the Code.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, Mr.
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr. Kan Ka
Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak Ching, have
participated in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills during the year. Such professional
development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and
seminars and self-reading which are relevant to the
business or directors’ duties.
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Number of meetings

Executive Directors

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Lui Yuk Chu
Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Directors

Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Lai Law Kau (Note)

Independent

Non-executive Directors

Kan Ka Hon
Lau Sin Ming
Foo Tak Ching

Note:
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Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs,
results and cash flows for the year. Management
provides the Board with management accounts and
updates on a monthly basis, with a view to giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, financial position, and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRS, which conform to the
International Financial Reporting Standards in all
material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2013/14, the annual and interim results were
published within 3 months and 2 months respectively
after the end of the relevant periods to provide
shareholders with transparent and timely financial
information.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, on the financial
statements are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system
of internal controls of the Company and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and
the Group’s assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control system. The Audit Committee
reviewed the internal control report. No major issue
has been identified during the course of review.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board,;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 21 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 3 INEDs, namely
Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak Ching, held 2
meetings for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The principal functions of Audit Committee include:
— to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

— to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

— to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2013
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2013; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2013 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2013 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor
of the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to HK$1,360,000 (2013: HK$1,302,000),
and those in relation to non-audit services amounted
to HK$1,240,000 (2013: HK$1,037,000).

Review of 2013/14 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2013/14
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and
Mr. Foo Tak Ching who are INEDs, and Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive Director,
held 3 meetings for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

— to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

— to recommend to the Board on the remuneration
package of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Group;

— to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board from
time to time.
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The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Remuneration Committee (i) reviewed the
remuneration policies and structure for the Directors
and senior management of the Group; and (ii)
recommended the remuneration package of the
newly appointed director during the year to the
Board.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 falls within
the following bands:

Remuneration

el

Nil to HK$1,000,000
£%1,000,000/& 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,500,001 7t £2,000,000/% 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4 members,
including Mr. Foo Tak Ching (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr.
Lau Sin Ming who are INEDs and Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim who is an executive Director, held 2
meetings for the year ended 31 March 2014.
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The principal functions of the Nomination Committee
include:

— to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board;

— to identify and nominate suitable candidates of
directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the
“Policy”) which set out the approach to achieving
board diversity in the Company in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its
corporate governance standard. The Company
recognizes the importance of having a diverse
team of board members, which is en essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage.
The Nomination Committee has been delegated
the authority to review and assess the diversity of
the Board and its skills and experience by way of
consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee will give consideration to
the Policy when identifying and selecting suitably
qualified candidates. The Policy will be reviewed on
a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board; (ii) adopted
the nomination policy; and (iii) assessed and
recommended the suitable candidate of Director to
the Board.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all
the executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive Committee),
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that the Board policy and procedures are followed.
Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary of the
Company, has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2014.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group
entered into certain transactions with “related
parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of the material related party
transactions are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than one-
tenth of the share capital of the Company carrying
the rights of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong
Kong (for the attention of the Company Secretary).

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company
Secretary and deposit at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
616share @ easyknit.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not less
than one hundred shareholders.
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The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting.
It must also be signed by all of the shareholders
concerned and be deposited at Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses giving the notice of the resolution
and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned under applicable laws and
rules.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its shareholders. Information will
be communicated to shareholders through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at www.easyknitenterp.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The Board
is grateful to Shareholders for their views, and
welcomes their questions and concerns raised in
relation to the management and governance of the
Group.
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2013 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their view and answer
their questions about the Group and its business.

The Chairman and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2013 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions being
proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2013 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2013 AGM

— received the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2013 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

— re-election of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy and Mr. Foo Tak Ching as Directors

— re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditor of the Company and authorization to the
Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

— approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to repurchase shares of an amount not
exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of 2013 AGM

— approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to allot and issue of new shares of an amount
not exceeding 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2013 AGM
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2014 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2014
AGM and exercise their rights to vote. They are
invited to ask questions related to the business of
the meeting, and will have an opportunity to meet
with the Directors following the conclusion of the
meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2014 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
repurchase of Company’s shares and the issue of
the Company’s shares. Further details of business
to be conducted at the 2014 AGM will be set out in
the circular to Shareholders to be sent together with
this Annual Report and posted on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that have
occurred since 1 April 2014 to the date of approval of
this report.
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The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 52 and 53.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$551,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2014 by independent professional
property valuers and the loss arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, amounted to
HK$660,000. Details of these are set out in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2014 are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves for the distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2014 were as follows:

Contributed surplus

A RER

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed surplus
account of a company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau (appointed on 1 December 2013)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon
Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky and Mr. Lau Sin Ming will
retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company by rotation and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Law 102(B), as
Mr. Lai Law Kau was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 December 2013 and he will hold office
as a Director until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and subject to re-election.
Mr. Lai Law Kau, being eligible, has offered himself
for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive directors
as regards their independence to the Company
and considers that each of the independent non-
executive Directors is independent to the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 13 to 16 of this annual report.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules, the changes to information required to be
disclosed by Directors since the publication of the
Company’s 2013 interim report up to the date of this
report, are set out below.

Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices
and in consideration of the increasing level of
duties and responsibilities as well as the market
conditions, the remuneration package of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, the executive Director, was reviewed and
revised. Accordingly, the director’s fee of Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu was revised from HK$1,236,000 per annum to
HK$1,560,000 per annum with effect from 1 April
2014.

Save as disclosed above, since the publication
date of the Company’s 2013 interim report, there
has been no change in directors’ information that is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected
Transaction; there was no contract of significance,
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected
Transaction’, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisting during or at the end of the year, and there
was no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Number
of ordinary
shares held

Name of Director Capacity (long position)
REEER
R&8E
- EL g (#8)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 107,581,674
(notes i & ii)
EERNT EE
(HiitiRi)
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 107,581,674
(note iii)
BARTL EFEREA
(W)
Notes:

)

(if)

These Shares are respectively registered in the name of and
are beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”).
Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the
issued share capital of Easyknit International and it is wholly-
owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited (“Magical
Profits”) is interested in approximately 36.74% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited as trustee of
The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).

With effect from 3 June 2014, The Winterbotham Trust Company
Limited (“Winterbotham Trust”) became the new trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).
Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham
Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by
Markson International Holdings Limited (“Markson”) respectively.
Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately 99.99% by
Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned
as to 60% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40%
by Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

EERFTETHAERRSG - HER
NRERER2ER &)

Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held Total of interest
BERE REZBN
RH%E @t Rl
147058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
147058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
Bt -

(i)

(i)

Itk 85 9 Bl bALandmark Profits Limited & f£5
BREBRAFAZEEZLEEERES 2%
ARARKERBREEFERAR ([KEEHE]) 2
2EMBAT - ZFBRATNKZRERE BT
AEA A G #)21.95% 2 Em M BB E E XL L
% & % B ° Magical Profits Limited ([ Magical
Profits |) 7k ZBIFR B 1T IA T A 4)36.74%
Z S MmE A Accumulate More Profits Limited
2&¥A - MAccumulate More Profits Limited
Bl E/AThe Magical 2000 Trust (EEz AR
REERLKEIRBREALRBAINIREKE) 2
{25 AHang Seng Bank Trustee International
Limited 2 & A °

H201456HA3H - ARFEREFXBR QA
([B41EFR(=5T)) i AThe Magical 2000 Trust
(AEXRABREEARZTIERRERBUINZR
WAk B) Z {5+ A ° Winterbotham Holdings
Limited ([Winterbotham Holdings]) }Markson
International Holdings Limited ([ Markson])
RBRFIERIETED A EE75%K25% 2 #
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper’t & 7%
Winterbotham Holdings# 4 #199.99% 2 ###% -
MChristopher Geoffrey Douglas Hoopert 4 &
Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hoopert 4 Markson
D RIHEH 60% 240% 2 s o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iiiy Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The
Magical 2000 Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.

Directors’ Report
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FERRRBROREBR G <R

F2014F3A31H © RA R B 15 = 18
BROTPHEEREERSFNEERIIEXV
BE2RFEID ERIE AR A R B E
SRR ER AR AR A K B E 5515336
BCAEFEZECMANEZSIAEZA
T (RARRESHTETHAERIN) 1
—F :

Number
of ordinary Number of Approximate
Name of substantial shares held underlying Percentage
shareholder Notes  Capacity (long position)  shares held Total of interest
| BEZER  BARM BE2 BN
TERRER wi &b R&#A (#8) Rt#A st BAt
Koon Wing Yee a Interest of spouse 107,581,674 147058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
BkE REER
Landmark Profits Limited a&b  Beneficial owner 47140,104 - 47140,104 15.89%
ERfmA
Goodco Development agb  Beneficial owner 60,441,570 147058,823  207500,393 69.96%
Limited EafAA
EFZRARLT
Easyknit International a&b Interest of controlled 107,581,674 147058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
KEER corporation
XEHER ER
Magical Profits aéc  Interest of controlled 107581,674  147058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
’corporation
XEHEE ER
Accumulate More Profits a Interest of controlled 107581,674 147058,823 254,640,497 85.85%
Limited Jcorporation
XEHEE B A
Hang Seng Bank Trustee g d&e Trustee 107581,674 147058823 254,640,497 85.85%
International Limited f&FEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERFEARAORHEBERHO 2%

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

Name of substantial
shareholder

TERRER
Hang Seng Bank Limited
EARTERAT

The Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation
Limited

B LEEERTERAA

HSBC Asia Holdings BV

HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)
Limited

HSBC Holdings BV

HSBC Finance
(Netherlands)

HSBC Holdings ple
EREHARAA

Notes
Wi

dée

dée

dée

dée

dée

dée

dée

Capacity
5

Interest of controlled
corporation
XEHEE R

Interest of controlled
#corporation
REEE R

Interest of controlled
corporation
REGEE R

Interest of controlled
corporation
REEE ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
S ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
SENEE  ER

Interest of controlled
corporation
A B R

(%)

Number

of ordinary
shares held
(long position)
REEER
R&#A (#8)

107,581,674

107,581,674

107,581,674

107,581,674

107,581,674

107,581,674

107,581,674

Number of
underlying
shares held
KERE
RBEE

147,058,823

147,058,823

147,058,823

147,058,823

147,058,823

147,058,823

147,058,823

Total
ast

254,640,497

254,640,497

254,640,497

254,640,497

254,640,497

254,640,497

254,640,497

Approximate
Percentage
of interest

Bt B4
Azl

85.85%

85.85%

85.85%

85.85%

85.85%

85.85%

85.85%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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In the 107,581,674 shares, 47,140,104 shares and 60,441,570
shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned
by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited
respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit
International. Goodco Development Limited was also interested
in 147,058,823 underlying shares (subject to adjustment) to be
issued upon the full conversion of the convertible note. Sea
Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the
issued share capital of Easyknit International and it is wholly-
owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits is interested in
approximately 36.74% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned by Accumulate More
Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Hang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust
(the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of
the Company, and her family members other than her spouse).
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and
a director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the
shares by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of
The Magical 2000 Trust. Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed to be interested in the 254,640,497
shares by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being
directors of the Company, are also directors of Landmark Profits
Limited, Goodco Development Limited and Easyknit International.
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, being a director of the Company, is also
a director of Easyknit International.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a
director of Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank
Limited is owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC
Asia Holdings BV which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC
Asia Holdings (UK) Limited. HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited is
wholly-owned by HSBC Holdings BV which in turn is wholly-owned
by HSBC Finance (Netherlands). HSBC Finance (Netherlands) is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc.

FERRRROREBRGD 2 €

(%)

Hit

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

$107,581,674% % 17 # - 47,140,104f% B 15
%:60,441,5700% i 17 5 5l LALandmark Profits
Limited R ER#ERARANFZEZEERTHEE
WA ZERRRKERBZZEMBAR -
ERERARARNRARBRERETE L RE
Al F 8 47,2147,058,823 A RE AR {5 (7] T # %)
FHREER EFERDFNKERR 2B BT
MRA R IR #21.95% 2 amMmABE FH®R LT
2 & A - Magical Profitsid ik 35 B 2 B %17
AR 7N i H 4936.74% 2 # % ° Magical Profitse
Accumulate More Profits Limited2 & %8 @ %
A F]#EThe Magical 2000 Trust (E &z A BIEA
RAEEFEEAR LT EHREABRBRINZ KIEKE)
2 {2¥E AHang Seng Bank Trustee International
Limited2 & A - BEAIMAZ L (EEHRL LXK
RRANAESE) HR/EIERThe Magical 2000
Trust2m A2 — 2510 WRARKRGOPHEEE
HoBXBEAEBEIGAL T 2B BEES
REAE &G R A7 254,640,497 R AR 17 7 1 B &

<

Bl

ARBEEBEALEREER X TN A
Landmark Profits Limited * (£ &R AR Q7] &
XEBBRZES - ARFBEEF UMLK LINAK
EEBRZES -

RAAREFEEURLTINALFERAAR
Magical Profits 2 E 5 ©

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
AREERITBERAFRAZZEMBAR - BALE
ELRITARAANEERITERABAEESY
62.14% 2w - B LBELRITAER D AMH
HSBC Asia Holdings BV &# A 28 J)
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited > 2 & [ B2
A] - HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) LimitedERHSBC
Holdings BV2 & #74A ' MHSBC Holdings BV
Bl AHSBC Finance (Netherlands)® & # A -
HSBC Finance (Netherlands)J5E L2 AR A
Az 2EMB AR -



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) With effect from 3 June 2014, The Winterbotham Trust Company
Limited (“Winterbotham Trust”) became the new trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).
Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham
Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by
Markson International Holdings Limited (“Markson”) respectively.
Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately 99.99% by
Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson is owned
as to 60% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40%
by Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the
Company had not been notified by any persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) was adopted and approved by the
shareholders of the Company for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since the
adoption date, the Board, may at its discretion, grant
share options to any eligible person to subscribe
for the shares in the Company subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated in the Scheme. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, no share option was
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme. Particulars of the Scheme and
details of the movements during the year in the
share options of the Company are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 16 January 2014, the Company and Goodco
Development Limited (“Goodco”) (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit International and a substantial
shareholder of the Company) as subscriber, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and
Goodco has conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
the 2% per annum coupon rate convertible note in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000.
Upon the conversion rights attaching to the
convertible note are exercised in full at the
conversion price of HK$0.68 per conversion share, a
total of up to 147,058,823 conversion shares will be
allotted and issued to Goodco. Details of the issue
of convertible note are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 January 2014.

Save as abovementioned connected transaction,
the Company or its subsidiaries did not have any
material connected transactions which were subject
to the requirements of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 12 September 2012, Easyknit Worldwide
Company Limited (an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as tenant entered into
a tenancy agreement with Wellmake Investments
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit
International which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company) as landlord in relation to the formal
renewal of the tenancy of a premises at Block A, 7th
Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-
483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (the “Premises”) for a period of 3 years
from 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2015 at a
monthly rental of HK$208,000. The annual cap is
HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate annual rental
for the Premises based on the monthly rental of
HK$208,000. Details of the formal agreement are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12
September 2012.

BA2014EF1H16E| AArEHERER
BERAR ([Ex )(%%% B B 2 & i
J%’Aaﬂ)imf TEKHﬁ)(VE?%EL% )

SN —IERBEWE B AARIEIEK
1¢H %éé?]_—ﬁi%ﬁﬂ*&f—ﬂuﬂ/b\ﬁgzﬁi
4%8100,000,000/8 7T 2 ZEF B £2%
ZAMEERE  c RATBBREBRRE 2K
}ﬁfv@é}ﬁ}j’u}ﬁ{ meﬁﬂxﬂoas,am%
BEITFER ZIS a) 4 Be 8 & B 1T
5 /\147 058, 823HXEL}%HXT%TZ1:|:?\ 0 %‘f%
TABRERFBENARAAHA
2014&1%1652’&% 0

Br EHiBER 59 0 RNE £2014F3 A
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RIE °
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A A ﬁﬂiﬁzos 0008 L IEXEHM
1&5@%5;‘%)1 RN EEILE481-483%F
BB ANEFEHRTEBAZ 2 ME ([
%)) B201299A1H & £2015%8 A
310 Ik - AHI3F - LAF A7 £208,000
BITETE - FE LR 52,496,000 T
BZWEZFERS EXMEZFB
HNRAA R HEA2012F9A12H Z A
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(continued)

Annual review of the continuing connected
transaction

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the Company’s auditor to
perform certain review procedures in order to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported the review
procedures to the Board and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction for the year ended
31 March 2014 (i) has received approval of the
Board; (ii) is in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group, where applicable; (iii) has been entered
into in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing the transaction; and (iv) has not exceeded
the cap amounts for the year ended 31 March
2014. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transaction disclosed
by the Group in this annual report in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

(continued)

Annual review of the continuing connected
transaction (continueq)

Independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Group’s continuing connected transaction
and the report of the auditor and confirmed that
the continuing connected transaction is (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available
to (or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole. Announcement was published regarding
the Group’s continuing connected transaction. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they
are applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related
party transactions that did not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules made during the
year were disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 31% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 94% of the Group’s turnover and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 68%
of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the 5 largest suppliers or customers of
the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March
2014.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the executive directors of the Company
on the basis of their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the Board after recommendation from
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
time commitment and responsibilities of individual
directors, the Company’s performance and the
prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors
as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duty of Audit Committee is to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control
systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
comprised of 3 independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set
out on pages 17 to 32.
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EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 37 to

the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 19 June 2014

Directors’ Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

3 7 A% S ol e

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF EASYKNIT ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 146,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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(REREFEMKZZBERLRE)

AEED (AT EHE TH)) EBZINBNE52E146
BEXEEXEEARAR (ERF)) REMEB AR
(5ifE [ERE]) NERMBERE  BEFAMBRHRER
BRER2014F3AMAZEEMBRANE - BEEZ
AtFEzHFaBakEttERaR SKakad
PEANGERERER  UWREXRSHBRRBERE
oA AL o

EENGOUBRRARECERE

BEARESERAERBEESHMASRMZEEN
BRERRBELAGIZBEBEELRUAETMA
FemapBas GRIERESRAMAZIAR
B UEMRAEZGAHBRE T FEAR KX
SERMEMZ EAERRML -

BBz BT

ZMZBEERBERMACERHZTHE M HMALE
HER - WIRRARERRELIORE REBBIRE
RS RIS RREREEMBAD - HMTE
RAREANDTAEMEMALE ESREEFMEE -
RAEREBZLESHMASRM LB LT ERET
BRI GLBRBRARMAETERRE LR
ERITER NABEELZFAPBRERENE
BEMEAERRAL -

50 Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 June 2014

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

for 17 48 g e L Ath 2 1 AL i

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

Continuing operations:
Turnover
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Other expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties

(Loss) gain on fair value changes of
investments held for trading

Loss on fair value change of
financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

NOTES
i
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2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
156,940 223,756
(126,790) (190,157)
30,150 33,599
9,224 5,199
(154) (268)
(1,890) (1,756)
(3,454) (4,598)
(27,075) (26,092)
(660) (30,790)
(2,877) 5,758
(1,439) -
- 1,047
(4,577) (4,090)
(2,752) (21,991)
211 69
(2,541) (21,922)
= 26,617
(2,541) 4,695




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Ay AR Al B R fth 2 v WAL A

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
NOTE HK$’000 HK$000
Hiet FET FAET
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hth2mE (%) WA
Items that may be reclassified VL TEET
subsequently to profit or loss: 2w EE
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AEEEREZ AT EE
investments (740) -
Exchange differences released upon R EE R R
deregistration of subsidiaries FrfERRIE =8 - (14,714)
Exchange differences arising on translation BEFINE BRI K
of financial statements of ZIENER
foreign operations (192) 1,009
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEMEEmAS (932) (13,705)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ARRBEREGAFEEA
attributable to owners of the Company Bz 4a5E (3,473) (9,010)
(Restated)
(&%)
Basic (loss) earnings per share FRER (B1E) &F 15
From continuing and REFELE
discontinued operations MBS EEEER HK$(0.012) HK$0.194
From continuing operations REREEKEEK HK$(0.012) HK$(0.907)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

LR A B IR DL
At 31 March 2014
201443 A31 H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Loans receivable
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets

Trade and other receivables

Bills receivable

Loans receivable

Investments held for trading

Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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NOTES
i

17
18
19
20

21
22
19
23

24
25

26

27

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
605 141
640,569 612,874
- 17,500
16,139 =
657,313 630,515
9,707 22,996

= 153
17,500 =
86,902 72,904
28,622 —
589,458 277,411
732,189 373,464
23,296 17,634
6,909 6,909
6,973 6,755
37,178 31,298
695,011 342,166
1,352,324 972,681




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R BRI

At 31 March 2014
R 2014 3 A 31 H

2014 2013
NOTES HK$°000 HK$ 000
HizE FET FET

Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible note B ES 28 54,047 -
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 29 20,254 12,870
Secured bank borrowings BEARTEE 27 154,929 161,932
229,230 174,802
1,123,094 797,879

Capital and reserves BEARK
Share capital % 72N 30 2,966 4,119
Reserves tEfE 1,120,128 793,760
1,123,094 797,879

The consolidated financial statements on pages 52 to 146 were EZEEN201456719AH/ERIKEERE52E1468
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on Z#iR&MHHE WA TIESFKNERES !
19 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Lui Yuk Chu
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A ;z‘g':“

R e WER S B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

At 1 April 2012 20126418

Exchange difference released upon  FST#IBATBZR
deregistration of subsidiaries Efz2

Exchange differences arisngon ~~ AEF/ 2 EREHHR
translation of financial statements ~ ZE} £ &
of foreign operations

Profit for the year RER T

Total comprehensive income FEEZENA
(expense) for the year (Fx) 2%

Issue of new shares (note 30) Tk (Wits0)

Transaction costs aftributable to /73R 2 X BALA
issue of new shares

Reduction of share capital upon ~ FABEE 7R
capital reorganisation (note 30(d)) &gl (#z£30/a))

Set-off contributed surplus against £ ABEEEZ
accumulated losses (note 30(0)) B (#:2301a)

At 31 March 2013 201323318

Change in fair value of available- ~ TJHHERE Y
for-sale investments NHEZE

Exchange differences arisingon ~ EEIEER BB R
tranglation of financial statements ¢EXZZ

of foreign operations

Loss for the year TERER

Total comprehensive expense REERERVAE
for the year

Issue of new shares (note 30) ik (Wits0)

Transaction costs aftributable to 773k 2 X BALA
issue of new shares

Reduction of share capital upon ~ [RAERE 2RA
capital reorganisation (note 30(1) &I, (#z230()

Set-off contributed surplus against £ ABEHEZ
acoumulated logses (note 30() B (Ha0)

Recognition of equity component of BEZTARZ iz

convertible note (note 28) W5 (Wit8)

Deferred tax liability on recognition BT ARS B
of equity component of AHERREERE
convertible note

At 31 March 2014 201434318

Convertible Investment ~ Property Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation revaluation (losses)
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TRRRE k& hx git
Ra  RBeE  EmRE  RARE  BABR  EXRE  EMBE  EMER (BR)EA b
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKSO000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000
TEL TEn AL AL TEL 3 AL AL TEL &L
5,507 169,872 - 53,194 299,722 39,821 - 40,624 (504) 608,236
- - - - - (14,714) - - - (14,714)
- - - - - 1,009 - - - 1,009
- - - - - - - - 4,695 4,695
= = = = = (13,705) = = 4,695 (9,010)
9,483 190,425 - - - - - - = 199,908
- (1,255) - - - - - - - (1,255)
(10,871) - - - 10,871 - - - - -
= S = - (4618 - - - 24,618 -
4119 359,042 - 53,194 285,975 26,116 - 40,624 28,809 797879
- - - - - - (740) - - (740)
- - - - - (192) - - - (192)
- - - = = = - - (2,541) (2,541)
- - - - - (192) (740) - (2,541) (3,473)
18,126 274516 - - - - - - - 292642
- (1,857) - - - - - - - (1,857)
(19,279) - - - 19,279 - - - - -
= S = - (1122 - = = 11,007 -
- - 45,500 - - - - - - 45,500
- - (7597) = = = = = = (7597)
2,966 631,701 37903 53,194 294,027 25,924 (740) 40,624 37495 1,123,094
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and
September 2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to the
shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital of the Company in February 2003,
October 2009, December 2012 and November 2013, part of which
was applied to set off against accumulated losses of the Company in
October 2009, December 2012 and November 2013. The balance may
be utilised by the directors in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and all applicable laws, including to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid
lease payments were transferred to investment properties.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

REE 7 BRAFEERKRARQ T 12004F3 A &2005F9
B EBIBMAFTE £ 2 £ - ATEERD IR AR -

AEEZHARBREARAN20035F2H + 20095
108 ~ 2012F 12 73 K%2013F 11 7 B &l Bk A 65 7 22 4
ZHER - BoHARBE R2009F104 - 20124F12
AR2013F 11 ABEREA AR 2 R BIE - E57]
REBARRARERMARAEERED T A RZE
8 BREANEHEALNRZ B5TEE -

AEEZNEBERRBARISEERLANERRE
NHEFREREVEREGRETHANE REANHE
ERE W -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/N va B
A aRER
For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

Operating activities

(Loss) profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Taxation credit recognised in profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Depreciation
Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value changes of

investments held for trading

Dividend income from listed investments

Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment

Loss on fair value change of financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries
Loss arising on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease (increase) in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Increase in investments held for trading

Decrease in trade and other payables

Decrease in bills payable

Cash used in operations
Dividend received from investments held for trading
Income tax refunded

Net cash used in operating activities

RERT
KREE (BR) HM
ETIIBIRAR -

ERBEERZBRE A

MEHA
FBRX
e
FERE®REZ
NHERE
REREE (W)
FiREZREWA
mE - BERREZ
ERERREBERE
BRATEFABRELZ
TREEZ
AHERFER
KB AR 2 as
REMEZRFE
ZPER

AT EEE SR
CRERGRE

B 5 R E MR RIER S
FEWE R (1510)

FEW & FRIE

RHIEEERELM

B 5 R EM RN FIER D

e R D

LECRS
BER éZEWH
5%

RICE ¥R 2 RE 58

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(2,541) 4,695
(211) (5,833)
(6,388) (3,288)
4,577 4,090
87 153
3,698 (2,063)
(2,676) (1,751)
- (1,047)
1,439 -
- (20,853)
660 30,790
(1,355) 4,893
13,289 2,793
153 (153)
- (17,500)
(17,696) (11,854)
(1,646) (937)
- (3,687)
(7,255) (26,445)
2,676 1,751
- 58
(4,579) (24,636)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEemER

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investing activities KREES
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity of TEENER B = (B A 2 H
more than three months ZIRITER 130,000 67,049
Interest received B HFILS 6,388 3,288
Placement of bank deposits with original maturity of AR B =18 A 25
more than three months ZIRITER (130,000) (67,049)
Purchase of financial assets designated as at BARATEF AER
fair value through profit or loss JERMEE (30,061) -
Addition of investment properties REREME (21,102) (261,422)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BARHEERE (16,879) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAME  BERSE (551) (8,915)
Net cash used in investing activities ARRERSHZRE T (62,205) (267,049)
Financing activities AR
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHIR 2 TS RIE 292,642 199,908
Proceeds from issue of convertible note BATAAR SR 2 P13 508 100,000 -
Bank borrowings repaid EBRITEE (6,785) (5,313)
Interest paid BAFIS (4,485) (4,090)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares BITHIR 2 R B (1,857) (1,255)
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITRBRER 2R HHA
convertible note (545) -
Bank borrowings raised ESRITEE = 174,000
Net cash from financing activities REREGE RS FE 378,970 363,250
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be hERRE 2B INFE 312,186 71,565
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FONReRERE® 277,411 205,477
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINGE BEE R B B 2 R (139) 369
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRZBRERFRBES -
represented by bank balances and cash ERTEBRES 589,458 277411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&0 W B R B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
As at 31 March 2014, Easyknit International Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit International”’) owned 36.27% (31 March 2013:
43.52%) of the issued ordinary shares of the Company. In
addition, Easyknit International holds convertible note issued by
the Company which is convertible into shares of the Company
at any time from its issuance date on 27 March 2014 to its
maturity date which enables Easyknit International to increase
its shareholding of the Company to 57.40% upon exercise of the
conversion option based on the capital structure of the Company
as at 31 March 2014. Taking into account the relevant facts and
circumstances, particularly the size of Easyknit International’s
holding of voting rights, including potential voting rights arising
from conversion of the convertible note, relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of other vote holders, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Company is a subsidiary
of Easyknit International up to 24 September 2013 and since
27 March 2014, upon completion of Easyknit International’s
subscription of convertible note issued by the Company, under
the definition of control and the related guidance set out in
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA).
As such, the Company’s ultimate holding company is Easyknit
International, which is also incorporated in Bermuda. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSs" )

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) have applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 — 2011 cycle, except for
the amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee benefits

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

HK(IFRIC*) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

Except as described below, the application of the above new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

ERAFEREEIT 2BERBER
HEA ((BERBREED )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSs” ) (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for,
and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment’ leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases’
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of
measuring inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in
the case of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made
any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the comparative
period for year ended 31 March 2013 (see notes 6(c) and 18 for
the disclosures of the current year). Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any
material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSs” ) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income” Upon the adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s statement of
comprehensive income is renamed as the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The amendments
to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W i

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSs” ) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 — 2012 cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7 and transition disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®
Clarification of acceptable methods

of depreciation and amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets'

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting'

Levies!

Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSS” ) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSs” ) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has
been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an “economic relationship” Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing the
financial impact of application of HKFRS 9.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date,
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique.

regardless of

In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

for financial reporting purposes,

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »

(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote
holders;

U rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, which
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes
from the rest of the Group, and has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and either (a) represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, (b) is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations or (c) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W i

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs not attributable to qualifying assets are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHBE »)
(continued)
Investment properties REME

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the
fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction. Investment properties
under construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under construction and their carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. The carrying amount is arrived at after taking into
account the reversal of any previously recognised accumulated
impairment loss to profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment at the date when
impairment is reversed does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three categories
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), available-for-sale investments and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MIA (&)
Financial assets (continued) EHEE (&)
Effective interest method BERFE %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MIA (&)
Financial assets (continued) EHEE (&)
Loans and receivables BRI E
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with EXRENZFEAETH I ETNRZIENTES

mﬂ§F ORAERERMISME - RRHERR
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables EXREWFIE (BEEHREMEKZKIE - &
(including trade and other receivables, bills receivable, loans WEE - FRERRRITESRERS) HEER
receivable and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised ERMEEAE 2 BB BN R EME#ARE
BiE (RepEERBEZEHBRNT)

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of
trade and other receivables, or loans receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and

secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »
(continued)
Taxation #E

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income taxes” (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

FESHBEE »)

BE (#)

BEERBRE RAERREHRELRT - I
fEHERE 2R A A LA B AIER B M AR TE
EHLHNEE °

BLEREEEREBINERNEEEERESR
BERZBERANETE  YRERBEHRER
RAB LR 2 HE (RRIGAED) REE -

BEERBRBEREEZFTENRRAEE AR
HEMRUMEERBEABRAER ZHIAL
Po

FATEETEHARBNECHAEEMS @ FIF
AFEEAFEZREVEZRAENRREB
HEZBRE  EZBRRBEBARN - BRE
MEATHERRAKEZXBEN (AXKE
BLEBRERRENEMER ZRAED LR
Mz MIFBBHEE) AFER - BHERREK
R o HARMBRREER M EARENEZE
ERBEERELERBREEREEEQT LS
1255 [PR1S 5] Préle Bt —ARIR A (BNR IR0 fa]
KB E BRI GTE -

MERBEEF AR BT ER - EHEREME
ERASEERERTRAERI - RS
RERERIBNE D RIRE M2 ERA S EERNE
AR ER o

XRBXEEBHRAR 2013/14 F£3& 83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE »
(continued)
Leasing A

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contribution.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management has reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded that
while the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong
are depreciable, they are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the management determined
that the presumption that investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising
from investment properties located in the PRC, the management
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through sale
is rebutted.

4.

86 Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report

TESHHERTEEMTZE
ERR 2

EREREZ EEH

BFRfEEt (RT) S UTREEREALE
HeiRRERT REGRAMBRRTER LS
BAREATEZIRHN -

REWRWELHE

Bt ERARAFERAGENRENFELNE
EHBRELELCHREEMS - EEECRS
ARECRENZAAYR A BAAKEUR
BENREYEA THE  BEYFREXKE
SRR EERRENIMEINBRELER
MaEmEHEASA - Bt - AREAKELR
BERCREMEMELNBELHIER - ERER
EEBHEWEDRR R FERAGFEZRENSE
IR BHERD

RAKRENRFBEZRENENS EEERR
Ha P ERREBEXHERERERMIFEBH
EHRRENEMB MR D LBEMEME
BEREAFKE - Bt - AREAKELRTENER
BYEMELNELCH AR  EEEBRTERE
ERERARFERAFEZRENENRREK
i35



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in estimating the expected
discounted future cash flows. If the actual future cash flows are
less than the original estimated cash flows of loans receivable,
additional allowances would be required.

Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W i

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting
period, the management works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the directors of the Company. Information about the valuation
techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties is disclosed in note 18.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes the borrowings and convertible note disclosed in notes
27 and 28, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. ERMIA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SWMIEZER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets tHEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 16,139 -
Fair value through profit or loss BATERF AR
— investments held for trading —BEEBERE 86,902 72,904
- financial assets designated as at FVTPL — AT EFAEBREZ
TREE 28,622 -
Loans and receivables B RERHKIE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEFALEERES)
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 REAMEYIE 8,007 15,457
— Bills receivable — EREE = 153
— Loans receivable — EWER 17,500 17,500
— Bank balances and cash —RITERNIR S 589,458 277411
746,628 383,425
Financial liabilities TRaE
Amortised cost B AR
Trade and other payables 85 REMENHKIE 6,295 8,987
Convertible note AHRRER 54,047 -
Secured bank borrowings BERMBITEE 161,902 168,687
222,244 177,674
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERKREERBEREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include AEFBZTESRTABEAEEERE -
available-for-sale investments, investments held for trading, BEEERE  HATE;ABRZZEH
financial assets designated as at FVTPL, trade and BE B REMEBUGIE  BERE - E
other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable, bank WER  RITEHERE EHREMERS
balances and cash, trade and other payables, convertible FIE - TRBRERRBERRITEE - ZF
note and secured bank borrowings. Details of these SRITAZHBEHENBEMTER - MZ
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The EZeRMIASRZEBRANBERZERR 2
risks associated with these financial instruments and the BORRIESIT - EEEERREZZER
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. % BRER R AVIREGEE S o

The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W i

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

BHEREZER/RIE (£)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ®RMTH @
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales or purchases denominated in currencies
other than their functional currencies, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately 91%
(2013: 95%) of the Group’s sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entities making the sale, whilst almost all

purchases are denominated in the group entities
functional currency.

The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

E T
() EEEE

ARAEEETHERR - LKEIEE
BN ZINEHEITHE REE -
REREBAZINERRK - 8991%
(20134 : 95%) 2 REEHEERIUE

EEBINEERUINEREIE =
TZMBZEERNEEEE 2N
BTG -

RBEHMR - MINEIIEZ REERE
CEREERERK BB REAEN

liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as N
follows:
Liabilities Assets
8% gE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) ARE = - 15 16
HKD BT = = 28 28
United States dollars (“USD”) X 43 93 19,406 78,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of
RMB, HKD and USD.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional currency
of the relevant group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2013: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss or increase in profit where functional
currency of the relevant group entities weaken 5%
against the relevant foreign currency. For a 5%
strengthening of functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the loss or profit, and the amounts below would be
negative.

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W i

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i)  Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

6. ®MIE )

b. MBEKREEEEREXE (&)

G EE (&)
() E®EE (&)

RREDW (£)

RMB Impact HKD Impact USD Impact
AR B EJ A 7
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Decrease in loss BERD
(2013: increase in profit) (2013 : @ FIEm) 1 1 1 1 808 3,285

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

A B O R AR
HERR - AT EREGERES
BHZMEERREEEARER
EROEEREITH S -

EEERR  FREIMLIAKE
BZINELBER - RFRERRTEE
RERFR R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to its
bank balances, financial assets designated as at
FVTPL and bank borrowings. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 27. The Group is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loans
receivable and convertible note. The Group has not
used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to such interest rate risk, however, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from
bank borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative instruments as referred to above at the
end of the reporting period and the stipulated change
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 6. €W IA @

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. BEEKREEBEEREXE (&)

(continued)

Market risk (continued) T EE (&)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIEmE (&)
Interest rate sensitivity (continued) FERGRAE (&
If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or 1l ) = = R 3k 1R 501 £ 4 B i B
lower and all other variables were held constant, the FHMAZAFAZ  KEEREZE
Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2014F3H31A L FE 2 B EEE
2014 would increase/decrease by HK$690,000 (2013: #n,/54690,0007 7T (20134 : i
post-tax profit decrease/increase by HK$695,000). ®m A/ 1210695,000/8T) © AN
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to SEMEAZ 2 MERBREZERFZE
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. EE -
The bank balances and financial assets designated RITERARBRAFEFABR 2SR
as at FVTPL are excluded from the sensitivity analysis EETOEEHRESTARANEE
as the management of the Group considers that the EEERRNNEZRBWAEK -
interest rate fluctuation is not significant.
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EEERE  ZHREINILTER
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as REEFNERR BEREHRRRT
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure BERMEANRER o
during the year.

(iii) Equity price risk (iii) RAERE Az

94 Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange of issuers
operating in banking and finance industry sector. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined

based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(iii)  Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
investments held for trading had been 5% (2013: 5%)
higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2014 would decrease/increase by HK$3,628,000 (2013:
increase/decrease in post-tax profit by HK$3,044,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading and financial assets designated as at
FVTPL.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 5% (2013: 5%)
higher/lower, investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HK$807,000 (2013: nil) as a
result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2014 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In view of the nature of business, the Group targets on
a focused market. As at 31 March 2014, the Group has
concentration of credit risk in the trade receivables balance
amounting to HK$6,016,000 (2013: HK$13,622,000) derived
from the five largest customers with good credit history in
garment industry. There is also concentration risk in respect
of the Group’s turnover during the year ended 31 March
2014 amounting to HK$107,170,000 (2013: HK$179,976,000)
out of total turnover of HK$156,940,000 (2013:
HK$223,756,000) which was made to one single customer.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has reviewed the financial position, liquidity and
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE
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BREDT ()
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F Btk AIE 8 3,044,000
BIL) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in relation
to loans receivable from a few borrowers amounting to
HK$17,500,000 at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$17,500,000).
The largest borrower of the Group by itself accounted
for approximately 57% (2013: 57%) of the Group’s loans
receivable at 31 March 2014. At 31 March 2014, all loans
receivable are neither past due nor impaired and the
borrowers are assessed to have satisfactory credit quality
with reference to financial background and creditability of
individual borrowers, subsequent settlement and payment
history of the borrowers. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has reviewed the recoverable amounts
of the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly
reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and banks with good
reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$60,000,000 (2013:
HK$60,000,000).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. E@MIE »
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MXEMEBEERERE (&)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) FEELERE ()
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFIAEEzERBELFAE LT H
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been HE o R IEAEEITHEERNR RS
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial APz eRMEBERTREASRENT » &
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group REREMNERASCRERE °

can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables REEEL %
More than
3 months Total
but less undiscounted
Effective ~ Lessthan  than 1 year Over  cash flows Carrying
interestrate ~~ 3months  2B3(EA 1year AHRES amount

BRAE  HWMER EHME RB1F RELE REE
% HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000
% TEL TEL TAL 7L 7AL

2014 2014F
Non-derivative financial liabilities HittReR
Trade and other payables BAREMERTE - 6,295 - - 6,295 6,295
Convertible note TRREE 12.12 - - 102,000 102,000 54,047
Secured bank borrowings BHARTEE 272 2,822 8,466 194,089 205,377 161,902
9,117 8,466 296,089 313,672 222,244
2013 20138
Non-derivative financial liabilties FEeRaE
Trade and other payables B REMENTE - 8,087 - - 8,087 8,987
Secured bank borrowings BERRORE 271 2,821 8,464 205,322 216,607 168,687
11,808 8,464 205,322 225,594 177674
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

c. Fair value

(i)

(i)

6. ®MIE )

c. AYVE
Fair value of the Group’s financial asset that are () *EERELEHEERAFENE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis CEREEZAYE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured AEBE S REERNREHRZA
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The TEAE - TREMEAEZONET
following table gives information about how the fair HESREENEE (LEEMBZ
values of these financial assets are determined (in (HERM R AZE) o
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used).
Fair value  Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  key inputs
tHEE DFE DVHERE HERODRIEDABRE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE7 T
Available-for-sale investments 16,139 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
AftHERE F1R RIEBTIS MR HE
Investments held for trading 86,902 72,904 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
BIEEERE F14 WRBM SR HE
Financial assets designated 28,622 Level 2 The fair value is determined based on
as at FVTPL H28 the price that the counterparty
BRRTEGABRZ financial institution would pay to
SREE redeem the units
NeREEMGE TROREL .
ERREEATE
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in B - FoMREIRZ EWRE M
both years. HFEES -
Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) RERBELEMHEERAFHEHFEZ

liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.
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TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable for goods sold, net of discounts and sales related
taxes, rental income from property leasing and interest income
from loan financing during the year. An analysis of the Group’s
turnover from its continuing operations is as follows:

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

EXH

EXRBEFANARFTHRAHERAARERZE
mHEZERREREE  RELENEZE
BWARKEERBE 2 MBWMALE - REBR
BREEEXBEXEIMOT

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Sales of goods EYHE 142,138 211,770
Rental income HeBA 13,927 11,780
Interest income from loan financing RAEZRRE 2 M B A 875 206
156,940 223,756

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products and
services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments from continuing
operations under HKFRS 8 are: (a) garment sourcing and
exporting, (b) property investment, (c) investment in securities
and (d) loan financing.

2 RER

RERDERDHBERRFENE - 2HWEAKE
Zfﬁﬂ“ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%(FEEN%J&ﬁ%J) BET
BRagzER  DEPFRERR H%H& SiRft
B - A RAREE  BEEREAMRAE
BASBEERNREZEZR -

RERBMBERELAESS  ARERFELE
EBZREREZEBRNHR  (QFRBREOKK
(L)MERE -~ ()BFRER()EFBE -
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEEHR »)
Segment revenue and results TEEXER¥EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results RREFELEEBIRERERNBONAE
from its continuing operations by operating and reportable BzERERREQT
segment:
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE2014F3A31 AL FE
Continuing operations: BREERE
Garment
sourcing and Property  Investment Loan
exporting  investment  in securities financing  Eliminations  Consolidated
FEREOAK EL 25RE et s &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Turnover EXB

External B 142,138 13,927 - 875 - 156,940
Segment (loss) proft B (B8) 27 (4.908) 8,913 (1,738) 768 - 3,035
Other income HthlA 6,548
Other gains and losses At RER (154)
Other expenses HthF% (1,839)
Finance costs HENA (4,577)
Unallocated corporate expenses LN (5,765)
Loss before taxation BHAER

(continuing operations) (BEIEEE) (2752)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEER
Segment revenue and results (continued) THEXEREE (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 B Z2013F3 531 HIL FE
Continuing operations: BERKEER
Property Investment Loan
investment  in securities financing  Eliminations  Consolidated
nERE EARE B R sk Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
AT AT AT AT AT
Turnover 4
External SR 11,780 - 206 - 223,756
Segment (loss) profi A8 (i) &7 (23,018) 7472 126 - (17021)
Other income EfMA 3,448
Other gains and losses HphERER (268)
Other expenses ApAR (1,756)
Reversal of impairment loss % BEREELCER
recognised in respect of property, RESEAR
plant and equipment 1,047
Finance costs HERA (4,00)
Unallocated corporate expenses NG (3,351)
Loss before taxation BHAIER
(continuing operations) (BEmEEE) (21,991)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments

are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in

note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the result incurred by

each segment without allocation of other income, other gains and

losses, other expenses, reversal of impairment loss recognised

in respect of property, plant and equipment, finance costs and

unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to

the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

MKt - MEREHRD B SFBEEAR
SEZ G HERMER - 2 BRH (BB) HED
WMeRE BERRANREMKA - Bl
ER - B 0% BERREZICEIR
EERELD BEXARENE AR ° KAt
AERAEEZIBERERREZR  ERER
PERKRRFEZ2E -
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. PEER
Segment assets and liabilities THEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BEERERIBOINMASE L EEREE
by operating and reportable segment: I
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Segment assets THEE
Garment sourcing and exporting EE R ORKK 6,515 20,952
Property investment MERE 721,188 705,339
Investment in securities BHERE 131,669 72,909
Loan financing EXmE 17,591 17,588
Total segment assets DEEERTE 876,963 816,788
Unallocated bank balances and cash ELOMRTERLIA S 512,052 186,936
Others Hit 487 255
Consolidated assets RREE 1,389,502 1,003,979
Segment liabilities P =R
Garment sourcing and exporting i & O K 2,663 5,692
Property investment MEKE 14,884 6,248
Total segment liabilities DEBEREE 17,547 11,940
Secured bank borrowings BIEHRTEE 161,902 168,687
Convertible note AR EE 54,047 -
Unallocated SN 32,912 25,473
Consolidated liabilities maak 266,408 206,100
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank balances and
cash and assets used jointly by operating and reportable
segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than tax payable, deferred tax liabilities,
liability portion of convertible note, secured bank borrowings
and liabilities for which operating and reportable segments
are jointly liable.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Continuing operations:

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

8. 7EER®

PHEEREE (&)

ot

RO BRREELHD BEZERDEM

- BRESESTEBERLREER
HEEESEEN  FEEEDSREES

R A\ 34

NRERDE o

- ﬁ%ﬁﬁwﬁ BERBRE - TRERE
BEHS BERRTEERELERZRD
|3 H%FZEE?I\ - ARBENRER

EE%&/-\'L ®

Hip s BEHR

B 20143731 HILFE

FEEERY

EEREAENBERANBEECEE -

Garment
sourcing and Property  Investment Loan
exporting  investment in securities financing  Unallocated Total
RERAKELD NERE RERE EXmE AR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FiEr FE7 77 71 T FAr
Capital additions BRRE - 28,961 - - - 28,961
Depreciation it 44 43 - - - 87
Loss on fair value change of RIEBEREZATERYEE
investments held for trading - - 2,877 - - 2,877
Loss on fair value of financial assets ~ RATE: ABHY
designated as at FVTPL SREEDTEEE - - 1,439 - - 1439
Loss arising on change in fair value of & EN£ 2 ATESHER
investment properties = 660 = = = 660
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

#HZE 2014 3 A31 HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Continuing operations:

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions

Depreciation

Gain on fair value change of
investments held for trading

Loss arising on change in fair value
of investment properties

8. 7EHER»

Hitvp BEHR (#)

B 2201353131 HIL FE

Garment
sourcing and Property  Investment in Loan
exporting  investment securities financing  Unallocated Total
RERAKED  WERE EFRE ETRE Bl Lk
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL 7L i3
AXRE 54 270,283 - - - 270,337
e 137 6 - - 10 153
FEEERE ATEZDNG
= = (5,758) = = (5,758)
RENZ ATEEDER
- 30,790 - - - 30,790
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external

8. 7EER®
i3 &

AEE EEUNEELTHE -

RREFBLEXB I REFPERME D 2K

customers based on the shipment location of customers and SECEERRIREE 2 FAEMIEI D 2 I8
information about its non-current assets (excluding financial BE (TRE2RIA) EROT
instruments) by geographical location of the assets are detailed
below:
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
RENMREFZEESE FRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET
Australia B = 1,857 = -
Europe B 24,345 21,309 - =
Hong Kong BB 9,182 7,699 429,061 428,965
PRC = 5,620 4,288 212,113 184,050
The United States of America EE 117,793 187,307 - -
Others Hith - 1,296 = =
156,940 223,756 641,174 613,015
Information about major customers IREFZEH
Revenue from continuing operations from customers of the BAAEEEERBE10%A L RARRLE:
corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total sales of BEPZEFREXENT
the Group are as follows:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A EEA 107,170 179,976

U Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting.

T RARBREARKZ S -
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HithzE R &8
Continuing operations: FEKEER
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET &
Net exchange loss B 5 B 18 55 (154) (268)
10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) FHRESHMEzEHN
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HE2014F3AIAEFEARRERMHS
the year ended 31 March 2014 are as follows: HHMT
Kwong
Jimmy Koon Tse Wing Lai

Cheung  LuiYuk  HoYan Chiu Law KanKa LauSin FooTak
Tim Chu  Candy Ricky Kau Hon Ming  Ching Total
BRE  BI%  EUR  AkE BER B8 HEW  @EW 48
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
Fér TEn TEr tEr TEn  TEr  TErn  TEr TEn

(note)

W&
Fees EEHE = - - 125 43 125 125 125 543
Other emoluments e
- Salaries and other benefits  — H4 REMHEF 900 1,236 312 - - - - - 2448
- Contributions to retirement S IRES

benefit schemes - 15 15 - - - - - 30

Total directors’ emoluments EEAIEE 900 1,251 327 125 43 125 125 125 3,021
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZME 2
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) BEBEEME2ER (£)
(continued)
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HE2013F3A3N B ILFEARAEZHE
the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: AT
Kwong
Jimmy Koon  Tse Wing

Cheung  LuiYuk  HoVan Chiu  KanKa LauSin  FooTak
Tim Chu  Candy Ricky Hon Ming  Ching Total
BRE  BEE  RAR  AkE  BRy IR BEM ot
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT TEr  TEn  TEr  FEr AT TEr TEn

Fees EZig = = - 120 120 120 120 480
Other emoluments e
- Salaries and other benefits - HE REMER 900 1,236 312 = = = - 2448
- Contributions to retirement benefit schemes  — RINEFIZF B = 15 15 = = = = 30
Total directors’ emoluments EEdEEck 900 1251 327 120 120 120 120 2,958
Note: Mr. Lai Law Kau was appointed as a non-executive MisE - M2013F12A1H » BERELEHE
director on 1 December 2013. FR—EBERITES -
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of BRACETABARRZ BRETHREH KA
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include N ER % 2 e BB RIEREBITHERM
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Rt 2R -
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZHE »

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
directors whose emoluments were included above for both
years. The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid
individuals, not being directors, are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits He REMEF
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes RIKEFIF B R

FREEMEESR

AERLERSMEALTBREMEES &
ERMEFEZMEE BRELNA - A&
=5 UHEF - ZEMEALHEHIIWT

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE FET
3,168 1,862

49 44

3,217 1,906

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

WEZMENFTIERE :

2014 2013

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

EEAH EEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 7%1,000,000/% 0 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 =
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other three (2013: three) highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition,
during both periods, no director waived any emoluments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

FINANCE COSTS 1. BERAE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Continuing operations: RECEXR
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly NERAFATHERZ
repayable within five years RITEEFE 4,485 4,090
Effective interest expense on convertible note HRERCERMEFRET 92 -
4,577 4,090
TAXATION 12. $i18
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET TET
(Restated)
(Z71)
Continuing operations: REREER
The charge comprises: X BE
Deferred tax (note 29) ERERIE (H7229) 21 69
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the AAEBRMEEELHERERR SR - SAEHE
Group has no assessable profit for both years. BN SR B -
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise BEREARENBAGOEMGRE ([ERM
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of BEE]) ROERESFEZERRIEE - RNHAEZ
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 ME AR E2008F1 182 & A525% o

January 2008 onwards.
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12. TAXATION (continued) 12.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as
the Group has no assessable profit for both years.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the results per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

HIE )

EAREBER M EFEANDERRTGN - 5
RPBSXRMEHER -

AREEHERGEBENEMEZAREREE L
HERIE ¢

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Loss before taxation BrEiAIEE
(from continuing operations) (RERBEREER) (2,752) (21,991)
Tax credit at the applicable rate of 16.5% ZEAT%E16.5% (20134 :
(2013: 16.5%) 16.5%) 8 2 HIEF A (454) (3,629)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes /& EFUIA 7
WA E (3,726) (4,700)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMFHRY 2
for tax purposes BIAT 2 707 7,559
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RAERBIEEBE BT E 2,905 1,086
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BABTRER
previously not recognised BBEEEZHEYE (113) (664)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries LERNAEMAEZMBRRZ
operating in other jurisdictions BEERIZE 486 371
Others Hoh (16) (92)
Tax credit for the year REFFIBERTA (211) (69)
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS

Loss for the year from continuing
operations has been arrived at
after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a))

Other staff costs, including retirement
benefits costs

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
Depreciation

and after crediting to other income:

Bank interest income
Dividend income from listed investments

REFELERBL
REFEBERDME

E=We (#Z10(a)
HBTER -
BB RBMKA

BT RA B8

REE M2
ERRBFAN I FERA
e

BREMBAFTA

RITA B A
LEHREZBREBA

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

13. RERERERBZAFESHE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TEIT
3,021 2,958
12,086 10,747
15,107 13,705
1,360 1,302
126,790 190,157
87 153
6,388 3,288
2,676 1,751
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 22 November 2009, the directors resolved to cease the
bleaching and dyeing and knitting businesses and these
businesses were ceased in December 2009 and accordingly were
presented as discontinued operations. During the year ended 31
March 2013, the Group deregistered certain subsidiaries of these
discontinued businesses (the “Ceased Subsidiaries”). The results
of the discontinued operations included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
set out below.

14. DRI RE T

R20095F 11 A22H  EFEARTEKRIEZER R4
£ MZSEBKDN2009F12 AR T F IS
FI BB RIEEEET - REIZE2013F3A31HIE
FEAN - AEBEFHLEEERIEEB 2 ETH
BAR ([BERLEHMBAR] - EREEGEER
REMEARZRZERIELE XL 2 EERS
LN

2013
HK$'000
FET
Profit for the year from discontinued operations RECAILLEEB 2 NEERT
Write back of other tax payable B Bl H A0 IR 6,139
Profit before taxation B 258 A s A1) 6,139
Taxation credit — overprovision of BRI A — REIR RS
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRRR R 5,764
Profit for the year from discontinued operations REDRIEEEERZ KEEHEH 11,903
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the REHERERIERBARZ
Ceased Subsidiaries reclassified from equity to BB EERERENEER
profit or loss upon deregistration 14,714
26,617

The Group submitted the liquidation accounts of the Ceased
Subsidiaries to the relevant PRC tax bureau, paid all taxes
assessed and obtained approval of the tax bureau to cancel the
tax registration of the Ceased Subsidiaries prior to cancelling the
business registration with the Huzhou Administration for Industry
and Commerce. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
no further obligations in respect of the Ceased Subsidiaries. As
such, all recorded liabilities (including income tax payable and
other tax payable) were released during the year ended 31 March
2013 upon deregistration of the Ceased Subsidiaries.
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EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

15. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BREX (B1E) BF
From continuing and discontinued operations: REFELSERNCDRIEEEER .
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share attributable ARNTIREEEZERER (BF1B) 2 TI1RE
to owners of the Company is based on the following data: ITERETE -
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic REREAR (BE) BFME 2
(loss) earnings per share (&B18) & T (2,541) 4,695
2014 2013
(Restated)
(Z71)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of HEREX (BR) 27
ordinary shares for the purpose of i 5 2 NEFEEmk
basic (loss) earnings per share KinE R 219,893,958 24,175,752
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15. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

(continued)
From continuing operations:
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing

operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

BREXR (FE) 2R &)

REFHECERE

AREBRREEREFELEET L ERERE
BIRBNTEMGE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable RRARRRIEMR 2
to owners of the Company REE (BR) &l (2,541) 4,695
Adjusted for: Profit for the year AE: REERIEEEER
from discontinued operations REEHER = (26,617)
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share TREFELCEER
from continuing operations SREAEREM S 2EHE (2,541) (21,922)
2014 2013
(Restated)
(271)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HREREREENS <
for the purpose of basic loss per share MEFHERRRMDEE 219,893,958 24,175,752
From discontinued operations: RECKRLEREEK

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations for the
year ended 31 March 2013 is HK$1.101 per share (as restated),
based on the profit for the year from discontinued operations of
HK$26,617,000 and the denominators detailed above for basic
loss per share from continuing operations.
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15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(continued)
From discontinued operations: (continued)

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic earnings
per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 has been adjusted
to reflect (i) bonus element of the rights issue completed in June
2013 on the basis of three rights share for every ordinary share;
(ii) consolidation of shares in November 2013 on the basis of 40
shares being consolidated into one share; and (iii) bonus element
of the rights issue in November 2013 on the basis of five rights
shares for every ordinary share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2014 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible note since its exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share from continuing operations.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended
31 March 2013 as the Group did not have any potential ordinary
shares in that year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had the following related party
transactions which also constituted continuing connected
transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit
International:

Rental expense HeEME

15.

16.

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

BREXR (FE) 2R &)

REBRLEKEXRHK : (&)

METEHE2013F3AB L FE 2 FRELRA
FimE  DHERHEURB()MN2013F6 A 5%
Bk 1% 5 I s AR AR 1 T B = IR L AR AR 1 2 B ZE 4
B Z SRR ¢ (ii)FR20134E 11 B R400% 4 6 5
— R EE DA B R (i) R2013F 11 A =&
R B (0 3% A AR AR D 2 B
ZEFIP D °

SFEEE2014F3A31B I FETREBEE -
WEBBRBEARBIMARLGI AR EE 2 HiR
RETFESERRARBELEEBE 2 SREER

o

HRAEBRZER LA TMERE L BB
M2 EE2013F3A31B It EEFREER
F o

BEALRS BEXS

(@) A AEEEXRBER 2ENBARE
BRBERERGZBEALRZRZNT :

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2,496 2,490

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% (2013:
36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at 31 March
2014. She also holds 21.95% (2013: 21.95%) equity interest
of Easyknit International through an entity wholly-owned by
her. The Company is considered as a subsidiary of Easyknit
International at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 under
the definition of control and related guidance set out in
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements’”

RRBIEEFFTHRZ T+ R2014F3 31
B8 &3 k& F [£36.74% (20134 :
36.74%) BERKETLITTAZ— ° BT
BB MEZERBZERMFEKEBER
21.95% (20134 : 21.95%) ##% - RIEF
B EREERE105 [LAMKRE] R
2| 2 EE AR S - 120143 A31
B %2013 3 A31 B AN R R R Ak & B
Z— B AR -
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment

(c)

(d)

agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company for
a salary of HK$50,000 per month which is adjusted to
HK$150,000 per month with effect from 1 April 2013. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be
terminated by either party at any time by three months’
notice. The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general
manager of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2014 was HK$1,950,000 (2013: HK$664,500) and
was included in the “compensation of key management
personnel” in (d) below.

Details of convertible note issued to Easyknit International
during the current year are set out in note 28.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes

rRHEEEM
R B AR A
RIRAR MBI 5K

16.BAEALRE BERS »)

(b) R2011F17 @ ARBEEFTHR LT 2B

(c)

(d)

BoKE LA LER®Z - W A$50,000
BILTEARARRRBEEA2013F471
B#FAZEZE F150,000/8 T ° % EBK—1B
BER 5 2 &R H#B2011F2H218 5
1 BRAMEAREREERER—FRT=
BAABAMAKLL - #E2014F38318 [LF
NEKELEEERANRBEEZME A
1,950,000/ 7T (20134 : 664,500/ 70) &
EREEUTAEZIEEEEBABZH
B A e

RAFRETTREER 2 TRERERZF
TEE TR 28

TEEEABZHH

EEREMEEERAEREANCHEM
T

2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TR
5,616 4,310
79 74

5,695 4,384

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and executive
directors respectively having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

17. 9% - BER&RE

Furniture,
fixtures
and Construction
equipment Motor in
BA vehicles progress Total
KERZE AE KEIR CH)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
COST A
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4 718 526 2,045 16,390 18,961
Exchange adjustments P 3 G0 B 1 1 60 62
Additions NE 62 = 8,853 8,915
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - - (25,303) (25,303)
At 31 March 2013 #2013F3A31H 589 2,046 - 2,635
Exchange adjustments P& 3 S0 E 1) (1) - @)
Additions NE 20 531 - 551
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3H31R 608 2,576 - 3,184
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT FERAEE
At 1 April 2012 R2012F4 718 366 1,973 5,896 8,235
Exchange adjustments RS 1 1 8 10
Provided for the year REERE 84 69 - 153
Reversal of impairment loss recognised ~ REZER L
in profit or loss REBERE = = (1,047) (1,047)
Eliminated upon transfer to BREREMER
investment properties HisH - - (4,857) (4,857)
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3A31H 451 2,043 - 2,494
Exchange adjustments T B ) (1) - ()
Provided for the year REGRE 53 34 - 87
At 31 March 2014 R2014%3H31H 503 2,076 - 2,579
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31 March 2014 R201453831H 105 500 - 605
At 31 March 2013 #2013%F3 7318 138 3 - 141
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18.

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
according to the following useful lives:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

3 to 10 years
5 to 10 years

In March 2013, the directors of the Company decided to transfer
construction in progress, which has been partially impaired, to
investment properties under development as the Group was in
the process of negotiating with potential tenants for future leasing
of the related properties. Prior to the transfer, the directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amount of the construction
in progress which is determined based on valuation performed
by independent qualified professional property valuer carried
out at the date of transfer to investment properties under
development by reference to net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential using the applicable market yields
for the respective locations and types of properties. As a result,
a reversal of impairment loss of HK$1,047,000 was recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2013.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. 9% - BRERRE @)

FRERTRRIN LARBENR  BEEREBEHAER
ERBAT 2 AIERFHRFENE

BRI~ RE KRG
E

3E105
52104

R2013%F37 AR ASBEIEEA e 2 AP ETH
B ARRESATERE RO RBECEREIRER
BHREEYE (FABREERBYE - EEHA
AARESTHEEIR KD SR - BRER
VEBERBEEYEGLEM  RNERZBREREEME
AHER2ERBEAM S RE 2 EELERMER
M REERARBERAZAS R AFEZHERE
T o Bt - B E2013F3A310 It FE R EEERED
1,047,000 T IMER B R ©

18. REM#E

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
ExKREME BRVPRENE Rk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET
FAIR VALUE DRE
At 1 April 2012 201254 A1H 343,157 - 343,157
Exchange adjustments [ 5 B 639 - 639
Additions NE 279,422 - 279,422
Reclassified from property, BYE  BEK
plant and equipment B ER IR = 20,446 20,446
Reclassification EEiipagl (29,740) 29,740 -
Decrease in fair value NEERD (30,790) - (30,790)
At 31 March 2013 2013563 431H 562,688 50,186 612,874
Exchange adjustments B 5, S B (30) (25) (55)
Additions NG - 28,410 28,410
Reclassification BN 26,013 (26,013) =
(Decrease) increase in fair value NEE CRD) 2 (1,118) 458 (660)
At 31 March 2014 2014463 A318 587,553 53,016 640,569
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises properties situated on:

Land in Hong Kong EELTH
Long lease REAH

Land in the PRC oYl
Medium-term lease HERFE A

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

18. REW X #)

NERBEYRZREEBRERYELR

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
429,000 428,860
211,569 184,014
640,569 612,874

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties
in Hong Kong at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 were
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at those
dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”), a
firm of independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. Vigers is member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The valuation of completed investment
properties in Hong Kong was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of recent transaction prices for similar properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group submitted
a revised development plan to the Zhili Town Government.
Under the revised development plan, certain bare land of the
completed investment properties was being rezoned for purpose
to construct properties for leasing in future (“Future Development
Land”). Hence the directors of the Company decided to reclassify
the relevant portion of bare land amounting to RMB24,000,000
(equivalent to HK$29,740,000) from completed investment
properties to investment properties under development. The
valuation of the Future Development Land in the PRC was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar land in similar location.

M2014F3A31H k201338310 » AEF L
REBZERZKIREMERFENRARERR
EHECBUREREEMEMEMTHENE
ENEEREAERAR ((FHEH]) RZEAH%E
THEZEEET BRI ATANEMEES
B - RABETHRERENEZEBEIZERER
MERBERER 2 THERERE

REZ2013F3A3MB L FE AEERKE
FIBERATETHREERST - BREZBITERE
Z BEMIREYE A T MG SR E
ERmErEsARZERA((ARERELM]) -
At AR AEZREREZRIEEMES 2
Mzt 35 58 A A R %24,000,000T (HHER
29,740,000 AT) BN D BERREFREME -
RPBEz ARER T2 HENSZRE TR
FABAE 2 TIBKRBISET °
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REW % (#)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group completed the
construction of certain investment properties under development
in the PRC and these properties were leased out immediately for
rental income. Hence the directors of the Company decided to
reclassify the relevant properties amounting to RMB21,000,000
(equivalent to HK$26,013,000) from investment properties under
development to completed investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties
and investment properties under development in the PRC at
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out as at those dates by Knight Frank
Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), a firm of independent qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group.
Knight Frank is member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$660,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: loss of HK$30,790,000). During
the year ended 31 March 2013, a substantial portion of the loss
arising on changes in fair value of investment properties was
arisen from the investment properties acquired in that year. In
determining the purchase consideration of these properties, the
Group took into account both the existing value (i.e. existing
state and use of the properties which do not reflect the future
development potential) and the bare site value which, in the
opinion of the directors, reflect the prevailing market conditions,
the real market value and the future development potential of the
properties. In determining the fair value of these properties at 31
March 2013, the directors (and the independent property valuers
under the instructions of the directors) only took into account
the existing value of these properties as the Group has not yet
obtained ownership of all units of the building in which these
properties are situated.

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised £ °
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

18. REW X #)

TRITFEBETRENENDFEZER (FRIZM
R HETERBAZE) -
BRERED

URIREEARE 27
WAFESR (F1EFIR) <A FER

Fair value
Investment at 31 Valuation Significant
properties held March 2014 techniques unobservable
by the Group R20145 Fair value and key inputs inputs
rEEREZ 3A31H hierarchy EEIER ERTAHE Sensitivity
RENF ZAYE AVEZER IZHAYE BAHE BRE
HK$'000
FET
Commercial units in 429,000 Level 3 Direct comparison 1. Price per square The higher the price per
Hong Kong method - based on foot, using market  square foot, the higher
R market observable direct comparables the fair value
REBZ BB transactions of similar and taking into
properties and adjusted account of location t?ﬁﬁ’ifﬁ@
to reflect the locations and other individual AFERD
and conditions of the factors such as
subject property road frontage, size
of property etc.,
HEEIEE - ERFE which is ranged
MRLZMBABERS - from HK$15,139 to
W AR AR E S5 HK$381,356 per
U ERER square foot
RATSERALR
REBMENRELM
{5 &1 nER T8
B MERNEZE
THREE &8F%H
RN F15,139%TE
381,356/57C
Completed properties 158,553 Level 3 Income capitalisation 1. Capitalisation rate,  The higher the
in the PRC of net income which is 8.5% capitalisation rate, the
E31R with provisions for per annum lower the fair value
RAEz B % reversionary income
potential BALE . \émlﬁ/ﬁ:
FFR8.5% AHERE
NG RPN -UN
LEL RN TE R R
&

2. Market monthly
rental rate, which
is RMB13.9 per
square metre

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value

misEARE " mHEEARERS
BERKE NEERS
AREA13.97T
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REWE %)

Fair value
Investment at 31 Valuation Significant
properties held March 2014 techniques unobservable
by the Group H2014%F Fair value and key inputs inputs
AEERE 3A31H hierarchy BEIER ERTAHE Sensitivity
ZRENF ZAYTE AVEER FEHRAYE BARE BRE
HK$'000
BT
Properties under 53,016 Level 3 Residual method - Capitalisation rate,  The higher the
development in based on income which is 8.5% per  capitalisation rate, the
the PRC ERI capitalisation of net annum lower the fair value
income and taken
A B Z ERAME into account the BAE BALEAR
construction costs 5F58.5% ATERE

that will be spent
to complete the
development

BEZE — ERIRA

Market monthly
rental rate, which
is RMB13.9 per
square metre

B RAER

{LELF ATKER Mg AME

I B BEARE
AR®13.97C

Construction cost,
which is RMB1,074
per square metre

BEMA
BEHKAE
ARH1,0747C

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the
higher the fair value

mEEARERS
AHERS

The higher the
construction costs, the
lower the fair value

BERARR
RTERE
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19. LOANS RECEIVABLE 19. BEIRER
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unsecured AR
- guaranteed by outside parties and - HEZEERMEZEATFEE
bearing interest at a fixed rate of 5%=T &
5% per annum 7,500 7,500
— bearing interest at a fixed rate of — REFEFEE5%E
5% per annum 10,000 10,000
17,500 17,500
Less: Amount due from borrowers repayable B BRARREBEEZ —FREIH
within one year shown under current BEZERERACE
assets (17,500) -
Amount due from borrowers repayable after one FRRIERBEE 2 —FEFH
year shown under non-current assets BEZERERARE = 17,500
The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans EREEERERRUER EEEXRRE2EM
receivable and considers loans receivable that are neither past AERACTBERRES  #ERAHEBZER
due nor impaired to be of good credit quality with reference to REFAZBEERLE  RELEBBLRE
financial background and creditability of individual borrowers, CERBMERRERIFEEER - RREHARLE
subsequent settlement and payment history of the borrowers. No ERMEKEN -
loans receivable is past due at the end of the reporting period.
All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency FAERKERRREARGUEAEREE 2T

of the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period. BEEMATIIE
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. T HERE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EMEREE LT 2RAES
at market value 16,139 -
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESZ R HEMEWFIE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B S EMGIR 6,803 14,550
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REBIREE = -
6,803 14,550
Prepayments NS 1,357 812
Deposits paid to suppliers to be B ERNER 2T
realised within 1 year HEmES 343 6,727
Interest receivables JIE W ) 8. 414 86
Other receivables HihfEU k18 790 821
9,707 22,996
The Group allows an average credit period of up to 90 days to its AREBLETERE 2 FHREMIZEIR - BiEE
customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based on the MR B2 HE - B 5 EWZHIBERR
invoice date which approximate revenue recognition date, at the SRR DITAT
end of the reporting period is as follows:
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 — 60 days 0-60H 6,593 14,534
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 143 16
Over 90 days EiE90 H 67 -
6,803 14,550
The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and EEEERRERE S REMRERE L FEEER
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that MREREBHEBELE S REMERFIES

are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality. ARIFEEEZ -
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B 5 R EMBWIE )
(continued)
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors REBH  AEECESREFELEHRT &
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$937,000 (2013: [ 1B & $£937,000/% 7T (20134 : 537,000% 7T.)
HK$537,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which REBIEREHRERE AEBWRERZSE
the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group does not B A TR o

hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are EBABERBECESERKREZ KRS TN
past due but not impaired: DK
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Overdue by 1 to 60 days BEiB#H1£60H 727 521
Overdue by 61 to 90 days EiBH61Z=90H 143 16
Overdue by over 90 days BB EEE0H 67 -
937 537
Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade FEBRBRATLR  RA EIREFE-R
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as a AT LA E - Bt - RREBRR - WRERZE
result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the end of 2 S REWGIRA R -

the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated AEBNEREEEREEB AN EEIIE
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant ZESREMBUFIESIINT

group entities are set out below:

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

uUsD X5 5,271 13,622
RMB AR 2 3
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22.

23.

24.

25.
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BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2013, the bills receivable were aged within 60 days
and were denominated in USD.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities listed
in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which are based on the
quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group acquired unlisted bond investments with a financial
institution in Hong Kong. The bond investments contain
embedded derivative, the interest rate of which is determined
with reference to the exchange rate of USD against RMB and
ranges from 0.3% to 4.5% per annum. The embedded derivative
is considered closely related to the respective host contracts
as it would not double the Group’s initial return on the host
contract when comparing to the host contract without embedded
derivative. Therefore it has not been accounted for separately in
the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.001% to 5.0% (2013: 0.001% to 4.6%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.
As at 31 March 2014, the Group placed time deposits, amounting
to RMB60,300,000 (equivalent to HK$74,693,000) (2013:
RMB66,880,000; equivalent to HK$82,875,000), with a financial
institution in the PRC with original maturity of three months. The
time deposits contain embedded derivative, the interest rate of
which is determined with reference to the exchange rate of USD
against HKD and ranges from 3.3% to 5.0% (2013: 2.86% to
4.0%) per annum. The embedded derivative is considered closely
related to the host contract as it would not double the Group’s
initial return on the host contract when comparing to the host
contract without embedded derivative. Therefore it has not been
accounted for separately in the consolidated financial statements
and is included in “bank balances and cash” as at 31 March
2014.
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BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continuea) 25.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

SBITHEBRRESE )

AEENEHERERIEE
ZRITREHBRREHIINT

BN BB IE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HKD AT 28 28
RMB AR 13 13
usD =TT 14,135 65,003
=1} =
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B 5 RHtEATRE
The aged analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, BREZZEH  BHRNFENRSHRZKEK
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: DT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade payables: B HENFIA -
0 - 60 days 0-60H 2,049 5,007
61 — 90 days 61 -90H - 45
2,049 5,052
Construction costs payable JE AR R 7,308 -
Rental deposits received and rental B EEe KEKES
received in advance 5,009 4,436
Accruals HRER 4,249 3,456
Other taxes payable Hip i 4,454 4,474
Other payables H At fE 3R 227 216
23,296 17,634
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

EZREMENFIE @)
B Y TR A30A -

AKENEBEBERNEER NN 2 EBIIE
2B REMENFTENT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
usD T 43 93
/= i
27. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 27. EEABITHEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Carrying amount repayable: FEEE VA2 IRA(E ¢

— within one year ——FR 6,973 6,755
— between one to two years ——EWMEF 7,157 6,949
- between two to five years —WMERF 22,709 22,035
— more than five years —HBBRF 125,063 132,948
161,902 168,687

Less: Amount due within one year shown W NRBARETNZ—FA
under current liabilities HHESHE (6,973) (6,755)
Amount due after one year R—FRIz &5 154,929 161,932

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carried
interest at HIBOR plus 2.5%, with effective interest ranging from
2.71% to 2.72% per annum (2013: 2.71% to 2.72% per annum),
and are repayable by 240 monthly instalments. The loans are
secured by investment properties of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$372,000,000 (2013: HK$372,000,000).
The proceeds were used to finance acquisition of investment
properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional

currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. CONVERTIBLE NOTE CONTAINING
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

On 27 March 2014, the Company issued 2% convertible note due
2019 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
Easyknit International.

The convertible note is denominated in HKD. The note entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time between the date of issue of the convertible note on
27 March 2014 and its settlement date on 27 March 2019 at
a conversion price of HK$0.68 per conversion share (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments). Assuming full conversion of the
convertible note at a conversion price of HK$0.68 at the date
of issue of the note, the convertible note will be convertible into
147,058,823 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company.

The conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the convertible note is not converted
during the conversion period up to the maturity date, it will be
redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding accrued
interest. Interest of 2% per annum will be paid semi-annually in
arrears up until the settlement date.

The convertible note contains two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity component is presented in equity
heading “convertible note equity reserve’ The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 12.72% per annum at the date
of initial recognition.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible note
for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

28. TR EBRSABRESNS

#2014F3H827H A 2 Al A K & 4 %
100,000,000/ 7L 31772201 94F ZI| i 7 2% AT 2 %
SEFKREBR -

ARBREBEAATIE  EEFEATUER

068B L2 RIAE (RERVEARLE) R
2014¢3ﬂ27527?ﬁﬁx7ﬁf§§ﬁ552019¢
BR7TAZHER R EMKHE  RBRERE
KRR 2 EBIRRGD o BEZIAGR0.68HB L2 i
BE REBRTHEZELRTRREE  AJK
REBALBRAARAGREEME.0IEITL
147,058,823 1 & @A AR (7

RITIE R RO 3 R BT L ARAD © M AT AR
FENAABEEINRALRFEE - BIRERE
HENREEER AN 2B RENSED -
FRR2%FSAEFEXNAMPAE - BEEE
EARIE -

ARBEREEEEMERD - NEEREDKD °
BEROIRN [ RARREESFHE] <#x
BERIRNEEIR ZERNXAFEEXR
12.72% ©

REE2014F3A3IBILFEZ AR EEEE
Ko 2 EEHHNMT

HK$000
FET

Carrying amount upon issue of the RERZEITIHRRERR 2 REE
convertible note during the year 53,955
Interest charge FERX 92
Carrying amount at 31 March 2014 R201453 4318 ZAREE 54,047

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there is no conversion of
convertible note into shares of the Company.

REE2014F3A31BIEFE - W& KBk
ERARRBRG
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29, IR IE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and REARBAFEERRATECELHIBARE
movements thereon during the current and prior years: AR ELEZMNT -
Revaluation of Convertible
properties note Total
MEEL AaRRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2012 M2012F4H1H (12,888) - (12,888)
Exchange adjustments Rz (51) - (51)
Credit to profit or loss for the year AZAREEEZEFRE A 69 - 69
At 31 March 2013 720133 H31H (12,870) - (12,870)
Recognition upon issue of BITA[ IR Z B FEA
convertible note - (7,597) (7,597)
Exchange adjustments B 5 A% 2 - 2
Credit to profit or loss for the year RARFEEzmFA A 200 1 21
At 31 March 2014 R201463H31H (12,668) (7,586) (20,254)
At 31 March 2014, tax losses not recognised in the consolidated 72014438318 + B 18 /E 857,199,000 7T
financial statements were HK$57,199,000 (2013: HK$40,280,000). (20134 : 40,280,000 1) W8 H RE A B
The losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax HENED o YEIBAERBLEE o mNkaETE
asset has been recognised in respect of the unrecognised tax HEREFINA - BB R R R IEE R
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. 2 HIAREIE RIS E o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 April 2012
Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Increase in new consolidated
shares

At 31 March 2013

Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Increase in new consolidated

shares

At 31 March 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A R B G

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

30. IR A<
Nominal
value Number
Notes per share of shares Amount
HiF BREE REBHE k]
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
EE

R2012F4A1H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Iz fn & B (a)(i) (19,000,000,000) =
0.20 1,000,000,000 200,000
P&N=1)1 (d)(iii) = = (190,000)
0.01 1,000,000,000 10,000

a0
(d)(v) 0.01 19,000,000,000 190,000
#R2013%F3 7318 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Iz & B (i)(i) (19,500,000,000) =
0.40 500,000,000 200,000
N1z (i)(iii) - (195,000)
0.01 500,000,000 5,000

e O (R 15 0
(i)(v) 0.01 19,500,000,000 195,000
[A2014%3A31H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2012

Issue of new shares
Issue of new shares

Rights issue of shares

Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Rights issue of shares

Issue of new shares

At 31 March 2013
Rights issue of shares
Issue of new shares

Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Rights issue of shares

At 31 March 2014

ERITRAR :

720124 A1H
AR n 81T
I 21T

()

FBASEIR

SRR AR D

AN AT

720133 A31H

SRR AR A7
FA AN B#AT

PR 3R

SRR AR {7

201463 A31H

30. BRZ& ()
Nominal
value Number
Notes per share of shares Amount
Brst BREE Ko E e
HK$ HK$'000
BT TET
0.01 550,686,675 5,507
(a) 0.01 97,470,000 975
(b) 0.01 114,700,000 1,147
762,856,675 7,629
(c) 0.01 381,428,337 3,814
1,144,285,012 11,443
(a)(i) (1,087,070,762) =
0.20 57,214,250 11,443
(d)(ii) - (10,871)
0.01 57,214,250 572
(e) 0.01 286,071,250 2,861
(f) 0.01 68,656,000 686
411,941,500 4,119
(9) 0.01 1,235,824,500 12,358
(h) 0.01 329,540,000 3,296
1,977,306,000 19,773
(i)(i) (1,927,873,350) =
0.40 49,432,650 19,773
(i)(ii) - (19,279)
0.01 49,432,650 494
() 0.01 247,163,250 2,472
296,595,900 2,966
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

On 12 June 2012, the Company allotted 97,470,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees at a
placing price of HK$0.141 per share. The Company raised
HK$13,606,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to serve as general working capital of the
Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the annual
general meeting held on 30 August 2011. Further details
of this placing of new shares are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 30 May 2012 and 12 June 2012.

On 31 July 2012, the Company allotted 114,700,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees at a
placing price of HK$0.106 per share. The Company raised
HK$12,037,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to finance the fitting and renovation of the
Group’s properties and serve as general working capital of
the Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to
the general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the annual
general meeting held on 29 June 2012.

On 3 October 2012, the Company allotted 381,428,337
rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.077 per rights share on the basis of one rights
share for every two then existing ordinary shares held. The
Company raised HK$29,229,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of rights issue to finance property
investments and serve as general working capital of the
Group.

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

30. [ A& ()
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12,037,000 T (MK FHZ %) - ERITE
RIEREARENE L RERIERAEE
—REEES - MEEERMH1E201256 A
R RRAFAE LBBIREAZLT
BEEMRIEERT

M2012510A3R + AR RIZERHBMRE

T mRAR D R — AR AR AR D 2 E 2% -
A &5 A% A % AR 190.077 8 T 2 REE(E - B
381,428,337/&% & [1%0.01/% 7T 2 it ik IR
n o RN R #1529,229,000/8 7T (FIBRF X
&) MREBITEERMERE ZBE RIE
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d)

As announced by the Company on 11 October 2012, the
Company proposed to effect (i) a share consolidation
pursuant to which every twenty issued and unissued then
existing shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.20 each; (ii) the reduction
of the nominal value of each issued consolidated share
from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.19 paid up
share capital for each consolidated share (“2012 Issued
Capital Reduction”); (iii) the reduction of the par value of all
shares in the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$0.20 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting in the reduction of
the authorised share capital from HK$200,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 consolidated shares of par value of
HK$0.20 each to HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
shares of par value HK$0.01 each; (iv) the transfer of the
credit arising from the 2012 Issued Capital Reduction to
the contributed surplus account of the Company; (v) the
increase of the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of
par value of HK$0.01 each to HK$200,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01 each; and (vi)
the transfer of any credit balance in the contributed surplus
account of the Company to set off against accumulated
losses of the Company, which amounted to HK$24,618,000.
The above are collectively referred to the “2012 Capital
Reorganisation” Further details of the 2012 Capital
Reorganisation are set out, among others, in the Company’s
circular dated 15 November 2012. Special resolutions
approving the 2012 Capital Reorganisation were passed
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 10
December 2012. The 2012 Capital Reorganisation became
effective at 9:00 a.m. on 11 December 2012.

After completion of the 2012 Capital Reorganisation and
on 11 January 2013, the Company allotted 286,071,250
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.40 per rights share on the basis of five rights shares
for every one then existing share held. The Company raised
HK$113,875,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of rights issue to finance the property investments and
serve as general working capital of the Group.

30. [ A&S (#)

(d)
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(f)

On 18 February 2013, the Company allotted 68,656,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees
at a placing price of HK$0.44 per share. The Company
raised HK$29,906,000 (net of expenses) with the intention
at the time of placing to finance the property investments of
the Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to
the general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 22 January 2013.

On 19 June 2013, the Company allotted 1,235,824,500
rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.10 per rights share on the basis of three rights
shares for every one then existing ordinary share held. The
Company raised HK$122,885,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of rights issue to finance potential
property investments and serve as general working capital
of the Group.

On 24 September 2013, the Company allotted 329,540,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than
six placees at a placing price of HK$0.063 per share. The
Company raised HK$20,554,000 (net of expenses) with the
intention at the time of placing to serve as general working
capital of the Group. The new placing shares were issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the directors by
a resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed at
the annual general meeting held on 2 August 2013. Further
details of this placing of new shares are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 11 September 2013 and
24 September 2013.
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30. [ A& ()

(f)
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(i

As announced by the Company on 3 October 2013, the
Company proposed to effect (i) a share consolidation
pursuant to which every forty issued and unissued then
existing shares of HK$0.01 each will be consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.40 each; (ii) the reduction
of the nominal value of each issued consolidated share
from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.39 paid up
share capital for each consolidated share (“2013 Issued
Capital Reduction”); (iii) the reduction of the par value of all
shares in the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$0.40 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting in the reduction
of the authorised share capital from HK$200,000,000
divided into 500,000,000 consolidated shares of par value
of HK$0.40 each to HK$5,000,000 divided into 500,000,000
shares of par value HK$0.01 each; (iv) the transfer of
the credit arising from the 2013 Issued Capital Reduction
to the contributed surplus account of the Company; and
(v) the increase of the authorised share capital of the
Company from HK$5,000,000 divided into 500,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each to HK$200,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01
each. The above are collectively referred to the “2013
Capital Reorganisation” Further details of the 2013 Capital
Reorganisation are set out, among others, in the Company’s
circular dated 25 October 2013. Special resolutions
approving the 2013 Capital Reorganisation were passed
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 18
November 2013. The 2013 Capital Reorganisation became
effective at 9:00 a.m. on 19 November 2013. The directors
resolved to transfer credit balance in the contributed surplus
account of the Company to set off against accumulated
losses of the Company, which amounted to HK$11,227,000.

After completion of the 2013 Capital Reorganisation and
on 13 December 2013, the Company allotted 247,163,250
rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.60 per rights share on the basis of five rights shares
for every one then existing share held. The Company raised
HK$147,346,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of rights issue to finance the property investments and
other potential business opportunity of the Group.

All shares issued during both years rank pari passu within the

then existing shares in issue in all respects.

30. [ A&S (#)
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147,346,0007%8 7T (MR E) - HRET
EERASBEMERERELMABEHER
BIHE -

i3

2

BIRNZERSERN -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The 2002 Share Option Scheme

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may, at its absolute discretion,
offer options to any employee (full-time and part-time), director,
supplier, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The 2002 Share Option Scheme,
which is valid for a period of 10 years, was terminated on 22
June 2012.

No share options were granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may, at its absolute discretion,
offer options to any full-time employee, director or consultant of
any member of the Group (including associated companies) to
subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is
valid during the period of 10 years commencing 29 June 2012,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any
shares to be issued under any other share option schemes of
the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

31.

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

BRESTE
20028 R ET 3

2002566 H6F - AR AR R At — B BB IR HE
& ([20028 A RE=T &1 ]) - HRE20028 R #E 5
B2 ARRIES SR IRABHMBERE 1B
BB E 2GR REEMASEERKE
NAIZAAEE (BBERE) == - #HEw
BRI BAAAR LA REARR ARG 2 BRE -
R10F HIM A — B 4 % 220020 IR #E=HEl - R
2012F6 A22H#R Ik -

REE2013F3A31 8 It FEMERE200208 %
T BB E R B 1T -

2012 B RiECTE

R2012F6 A29H + AR BRE it —BHIER
RERTEl ([201288 R AT 21) - B IR20120 iR 8
HEIZIE  AARESS IR BHEIEE
RIBZ T B FTHTE 2 60 R A6 1 T AN &= B (R AT X
EQA (REBREDRR) cEN2BEE £
kBRI L AT RE A QB 2 BARE - 2012
FERRAE ST BIBR IE LA R b 5 A AL S 3 EET - BAIA
20126 A29 A BEHOFHEA—FEEM »

2012 E EBMTAERSEEHNR
BARAREBRDZEBEATEARARERR
Mg o

RiZ20128 B B HTT 2 ZRBRHEE T
& (BREARR EME MR REEK T %
T2 ERBHD A FEE) BBRRA201 28 i
ATEIE A BRI Z10% °
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. B HESTEl ()

The 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company with such grantee
and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share
Option Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall end on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant
of the share options, the Company must (a) specify the minimum
period(s), if any, for which a share option must be held before it
can be exercised in whole or in part, and (b) specify the minimum
performance target(s), if any, which must be achieved before the
share options can be exercised in whole or in past. The amount
payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of share options is
HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEE M
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the RBESRR  AEEERTF—RRTER/RRTA
Group were pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities granted SEEREMIEENT
to the Group:
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Investment properties %% 372,000 372,000
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. BEHANZH
The Group as lessee KEBEREBEA
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Minimum lease payments recognised in profit or  F AR Bz P H#ER
loss during the year Z&IERE T 2,606 2,597

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year -
In the second to fifth year inclusive ]

RI\EHR - ARER AN F R 2 AR
RERNARZERSNRZAES

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

2,543 2,528

1F (REERWE) 1,084 3,536
3,627 6,064
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. REBARH =)
(continued)
The Group as lessee (continued) rEBERBEBA (&)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the RERONREREEZETRRAEME BN
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for He HOZHEBE-—ZEMFE M (2013F : —
lease terms ranging from one to two years (2013: one to three E=H)o
years).
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments REREET L 2HL  HeNHaEE kI &
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for VBT EANE ez

contingent rental payments.

The Group as lessor FEBHERAHEA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Property rental income earned during the year  EREIZ MER L UA 13,927 11,780
Less: Outgoings o (761) -
Net rental income Me WA FHE 13,166 11,780
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RBREBR - AEBEBEF TV FRRRKER
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: IR
2014 2013
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET T
Within one year —FR 13,094 9,927
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFERF (PIEEREMT) 11,303 8,965
Over five years AR E 3,433 -
27,830 18,892
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments BIEAEBI 7Y BANHAERE R E
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for B ARENIT - B EME s AANEE
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed 2R EBH—F+F (2013F : —FRHE) o

tenants for terms of one to seven years (2013: one to five years).
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:

— property, plant and equipment
— investment properties

- REWME

- 0% BENEE

fo B S 5 W e M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
EZ 20144 3 A 31 HILFE

34, EXEIE

EHEOEICESNON= R e et
B2 BN TIBR

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TEIT
= 1,399

14,311 3,617
14,311 5,016

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,250 and they can choose to make additional contributions.
The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,250
(the “mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled
to 100% of the employer's mandatory contributions upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions which
have been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income were as follows:

35. RIKEFIGT &

AEBREBERERHMELESHENEH - RIR
THZEHELEERRGEHAE (BB
2] RpEetET  EEAREEAF&HE
5% RS E1,2508 70 0 (BB W Al B IEEH 5
IMER - BEBAENRAREEZEBAFSHE
HHB%H &% H1,2508 7T ([8HIEMT]) - &
ER65ERE LT BERITRENE
AEERE®RSMEMRTZ100% °

RAEBEZHBRARIZEEATEBRNRILZER
BBRKEEIKE - MBARARFESETE
AAEREE ST - ARBEZAETERAR
B BIEHPTARE 2 45K

REFWRBRWHAATRERBREERN - B
RGEBREREERERTRE 2 EEHAN
T

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET T

Employers’ contributions recognised in profit or loss A8z #ER 2 B F 415 413

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in the
future years.

REEHR - WL AR B IR ERRE
&2 AR o
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

36. TEMB LT ZHE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2013 are as follows:

72014534310 K201343A310 * AR A x
EMBLRLZFELNT -

Proportion of

Nominal value nominal value of
of issued issued share capital/
share capital/ paid-up registered
Place of paid-up capital held by
incorporation/ registered capital/ the Company
establishment and stated capital NGk
operation ERTRE/ BERTRE/ Principal
Name of subsidiary EMKL BEREMBRA/ BREMBA activities
WEAEEHE RIREE R BRRAEE HEBSL TEEH
2014 2013
Directly held:
BERE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
FRERAERAT (“BVI")/Hong Kong LRERIET BRLE
ABRTES/BR
Indirectly held:
FEEHRE
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EBRAEE/BE LRRIET NERE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
B ARERAT BE TRRIET ESRE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERAR LA EBRAEE/BE LERIET mERE
Easyknit Worldwide Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of garments
Company Limited 0 L@k KKEE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities
KEEERAT B LEkeET BHRE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
RREERERAT & LERIET NERE
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
B EEERAT &t LERIET NERE
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) PRC Registered 100% 100%  Property investment
Co., Ltd. ( “Enterprises Huzhou" )* HE US$25,544,206 WERE
XEEZ (M) BRAR AR A
(TMEE]) * 25,544,2065 10

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise

*

MMEBEER —RRNFBEKIZINERED

¥ REHIAS50F - EE2054F 128148 -

established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. TEMBRE 215 @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in BEARAEZZER - ERMIITZAAFN
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected BLF RIBREAGFREZZELIBRASHE
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the BEXTRHD - REARAEFZEAIEEM
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, MEBARZFIBEREEERBRIE o

in the opinion of the directors of the Company result in particulars
of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RBEHR  ARAIREECHAKEN L
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these REIBZHBRAR - LEMBARKBINER
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of HiE o WEMBRARZEZEBHENT ¢

these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXK TERERME MEAREE

2014 2013
Investment holding Hong Kong 7 6
REZR &
Inactive Hong Kong 5 6
FEEEE B
Inactive PRC 2 2
JERE m

14 14

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 BEMB AT R2014E3 A31H 52013F3 531
March 2014 or 31 March 2013. BB TEMERES o

XREBXEEBHRAR 2013/14 F3;& 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
£ A e R B R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
2 Z 2014 3 A 31 HIFFE

37. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The following events took place subsequent to 31 March 2014:

(a)

On 3 April 2014, Easyknit International requested the
conversion of the convertible note issued by the Company in
the principal sum of HK$20,000,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.68 per conversion share. 29,411,764 new ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued and
allotted accordingly.

On 30 April 2014, the Group entered into a provisional
agreement with an independent third party to acquire an
investment property in Hong Kong for a consideration of
HK$236,800,000. The acquisition was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting
held on 18 June 2014.

On 18 June 2014, the Company allotted 65,200,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees at a
placing price of HK$0.35 per share. The Company raised
HK$22,500,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to be used as general working capital of the
Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 20 May 2014. Further details of
this placing of new shares are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 6 June 2014 and 18 June 2014.

As a result of the issue of new placing shares set out in
(c) above, conversion price of the convertible note issued
by the Company is adjusted from HK$0.68 per conversion
share to HK$0.66 per conversion share (subject to further
anti-dilutive adjustments) with effect from 18 June 2014.
Assuming full conversion of the outstanding convertible
note in the principal sum of HK$80,000,000 (after the
conversion set out in (a) above) at the date of issuance of
these consolidated financial statements, the outstanding
convertible note will be converted into 121,212,121 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company.

37. REHKRKEE

AT 520143 A31H#%34 2 =18 -

(a)
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR Az BBk R &
THE COMPANY

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET

Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB A AR 545,761 571,647

Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H i EUGRIA 473 244
Bank balances RIT4E R 495,909 121,286
496,382 121,530
Current liabilities nBaE

Other payables H fth FE 508 2,063 2,035
Net current assets REVEEFE 494,319 119,495
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDERE 1,040,080 691,142

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible note AR I 54,047 =
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIEAR 7,586 =
61,633 =
978,447 619,142

Capital and reserves BRREE
Share capital % 7N 2,966 4,119
Reserves (note) % (W) 975,481 687,023
978,447 691,142
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

and prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2012

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Reduction of share capital upon
capital reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus against
accumulated losses

At 31 March 2013

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Reduction of share capital upon
capital reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus against
accumulated losses

Recognition of equity component
of convertible note

Deferred tax liability on recognition of
equity component of convertible note

At 31 March 2014

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current

38. AR A ZHHARNE @)

it ARAZHEERFAREBEFREZEH

UM
Convertible
note
equity
Share reserve Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium  TEREE reserve surplus losses Total
KRG EE RifE BAGE BARE RiHER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET FET FHET FAT
7201254 A18 169,872 - 53,194 299,722 (24,250) 498,538
FEELERXER
- - - - (11,556) (11,556)
BRI 190,425 - - - - 190,425
BTN 2 RHHA
(1,255) - - - - (1,255)
BARERR 2 RAER
- - - 10,871 - 10,871
INEABREHE R EE
- - - (24,618) 24,618 -
7201353318 359,042 - 53,194 285,975 (11,188) 687,023
FEEREMAXEE
= = - - (41,383) (41,383)
BITHAR 274,516 - - - - 274,516
BITHRG 2 XBRA
(1,857) - - - - (1,857)
R 2 RAEA
- - - 19,279 - 19,279
WEARSEHERHER
S = = (11,227) 11,227 =
AREERERN S < TR
- 45,500 - - - 45,500
BATARZEERN
JEEHERR = (7597) - - - (7597)
72014537316 631,701 37903 53,194 294,027 (41,344) 975,481
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Financial Summary
S % R

RESULTS E S
Year ended 31 March
HE3ASIHLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET & & FET FET
Turnover EERE 52,385 348,081 286,916 223,756 156,940
(Loss) profit before taxation Briial (E518) B A (16,837) 69,999 (40,670) (1,138) (2,752)
Taxation (charge) credit BE (AX) &A (1,221) (4,939) 5,908 5,833 211
(Loss) profit for the year A AR
attributable to owners of AR EE
the Company (B18) &7 (18,058) 65,060 (34,762) 4,695 (2,541)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
M3A31H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FET FET T FET
Total assets BEE 548,793 702,005 662,136 1,003,979 1,389,502
Total liabilities Bafs (58,810) (73,643) (53,900) (206,100) (266,408)
489,983 628,362 608,236 797,879 1,123,094
Equity attributable to owners RARRE
of the Company FE(h R 489,983 628,362 608,236 797,879 1,123,094
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Summary of Properties

VI SEME 2L
At 31 March 2014
201443 A31 H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

Ground Floor

No.148 Johnston Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Ground Floor and Cockloft
No.13 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

1st — 5th Floors

No.15 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Ground Floor

No.6 Cannon Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Two parcels of land

at an industrial site located at

the South of Hengtang Harbour,
the West of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province

of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of seven building
blocks being built and five building
blocks under construction

e 3

BEET
gtz
1485k 10 T~

73 Ee 135%
T M2

EAMEE
73 B 155
1EE5E

Rl
FEH65:
T

MIEERTEBZ L
iz g2 7 Fh BT & M
R A B AR R ATY
REB AR - R
EREEZEEY R
AR RS 2 EEY) -

RENME

Approximate
gross floor/

Purpose saleable/site area
J:ikzS Bwgm
ERE®E
(sq.ft.)
(FHR)
Commerecial 580
[
Commercial 1,232
[EES
Commercial/ 3,765
Residential
mE/EE
Commercial 472
[
Industrial 1,805,534
I¥

148 Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2013/14 Annual Report

Lease term

HYFH

Long
5

Long
$23-1

Long
=31

Long
=

Medium

P



EASYKNIT ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED

K EHEXEMAR A A

(Stock Code B KEE : 0616)




	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Summary of Properties
	Back Cover 

